
WORCESTER STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

Tuesday, January 14, 2025
4:00 P.M.

Wellness Center, Room 204
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Meeting Called By: Dr. Lisa Colombo (Chair) Minutes: Nikki Kapurch

Board Members: Dr. Lisa Colombo (Chair); Maureen Power (Vice-Chair); Dr. Lawrence Sasso (Vice-Chair); Kelly Brissette;
Karen Lafond; David Tuttle; Dina Nichols; Amy Peterson; Kyram Pou; Marina Taylor

WSU Staff: Barry Maloney; Ashlynn Allain; Kathy Eichelroth; Carl Herrin; Nikki Kapurch; Lois Wims
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

All documents considered to be drafts until discussed and/or approved by the Board

AGENDA

ITEM RESPONSIBLE ACTION

1. Administrative Business
A. Call to Order
B. Approval of the Minutes:

1. Academic & Student Development Committee - November
26, 2024*

2. Full Board Meeting- November 26, 2024*

Dr. Lisa Colombo

1. vote required

2. vote required

2. Presentation: 4:10 - 5:10 pm / 60 minutes with Q & A

A. EAB: Enroll360 with Lauren Kennedy, a Senior Strategic Leader at
EAB*

Ryan Forsythe

Lauren Kennedy

A. Informational

3. Presentation: 5:15 - 6:00 pm / 45 minutes with Q & A

A. Fundraising Campaign*

TomMcNamara

Kathy Howrigan
A. Informational

4. Finance & Facilities Committee Report

A. Finance & Facilities Committee Packet*
Dr. Lawrence Sasso 4. vote required

5. Administrative Updates
A. Report of the Chair

a. Next meeting: April 8, 2025
B. Report of the Student Trustee
C. Report of the President

a. President’s Update*
b. President Maloney Memo to Trustees*

i. Pool for Commencement Speakers and Award
Recipients*

ii. Approval of Nominees for Speaker/Awards Pool
iii. Approval of Honorary Degrees for 2025

Dr. Lisa Colombo

Kyram Pou, Jr.
Barry Maloney

a. Informational
b. Informational
i. Informational

ii. vote required
iii. (2) votes required

6. Adjournment Dr. Lisa Colombo 6. vote required

*Attachments

















State University SUCCESS Pilot Program 

  

Institution 

$500,000 Base 
Allocation per 
campus  

Equity Allocation 
based on Share of 
Pell 

Allocation 
based on Share 
of Enrollment Total 

DHE $1,000,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000 

Bridgewater State University $250,000 $1,544,910 $1,101,044 $2,895,955 

Fitchburg State University $250,000 $648,358 $399,229 $1,297,587 

Framingham State University $250,000 $673,001 $392,501 $1,315,502 
Massachusetts College of Art and 
Design $350,000 $283,987 $256,299 $890,286 
Massachusetts College of Liberal 
Arts $350,000 $221,791 $112,305 $684,096 

Massachusetts Maritime Academy $350,000 $143,167 $220,369 $713,536 

Salem State University $250,000 $1,169,978 $630,076 $2,050,053 

Westfield State University $250,000 $786,244 $496,551 $1,532,795 

Worcester State University $250,000 $798,565 $571,625 $1,620,191 

Total $3,550,000 $6,270,000 $4,180,000 $14,000,000 
 
 

 



DGCE Pay 
Disparities



2021-2024



DGCE Visiting Pay vs.

Adjusted
Visiting pay 
is currently $204.54 
less per credit than in 
2021.



Management’s address

The gap nearly
$250 per credit



DGCE Pay Disparity
2001-2024



2015 - 2020: DGCE Pay plummets a s a percent PT Day 
2020 - 2023: DGCE Pay settles 71.5%

2023: Pay 69.3% PT Day



DGCE pay as a percent PT Day 2001-2023

2015 DGCE pay plummeted

71.5% Day pay.

In Fall DGCE pay 69.3%

Day pay.

Management’s 4% increase in Spring 2024

address this a s it keeps DGCE pay 

at 69.3% Day pay.



The disparity in $ per credit has than $199.67 in 2001 $664.33 in 2023. 
Management’s 2024 increases the disparity $690.91



The disparity in $ per credit has than $199.67 in 2001 $664.33 in 2023. 
Management’s 2024 increases the disparity $690.91

In the pay disparity $199.67 per credit.

In Fall the pay disparity has than

$664.33 per credit.

Management’s 4% raise increases the pay disparity

$690.91 per credit in Spring 2024. That’s $2 072.73 less

a 3-credit $2 763.64 less a 4-credit .

The disparity is greater at higher ranks.



Enrollment Update

Ryan Forsythe, Vice President for Enrollment
WSU Board of Trustees Meeting
Nov. 26, 2024



Worcester State University

Fall 2024 Enrollment

WSU Data for DHE HEIRS EER.  Oct. 2024.2

+3.4% vs. last year

+2.9% vs. last year



Worcester State University

Spring 2025 Returning Student Registration

WSU Internal Data.  Nov. 25, 2024.3

+1.01%



Worcester State University

Spring 2025 New Student Admissions

WSU Internal Data.  Nov. 20, 2024.4

-19.95%

-7.69%

-4.47%



Worcester State University

Fall 2025 New Student Admissions

WSU Internal Data.  Nov. 20, 2024.5

+11.86%

+88.83%



Worcester State University

EAB’s Enroll360

6



Worcester State University

Worcester State ValuePlus

7

• Builds on our commitment to provide high quality higher education to all 
students. 

• Beginning in the Fall of 2025, students who qualify for Worcester State 
ValuePlus can attend Worcester State for $0 in tuition and fees.

• To qualify, students must be:
• A Massachusetts residents, and 
• Pell eligible (adjusted gross income of $75,000 or less). 

• ValuePlus covers 100% of tuition and fees for eligible students. 
Worcester State offers other sources of financial aid and scholarships to 
potentially help with housing costs for students who wish to live on 
campus.



Questions?
Thank you!



Our Enrollment Partnership 
Worcester State University

Enroll360



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

ROADMAP
2

1 Who Are We?

2

Partnership Summary and Ecosystem 3

What’s Next4

State of the Enrollment Sector



Education’s Trusted Partner to 
Help Schools and Students Thrive

Insight-powered Solutions for Your Top Priorities and Toughest Challenges

Institutional 
Strategy

Future-proof your institution 
by addressing immediate and 

long-term opportunities and threats 

Undergraduate
Marketing and 

Enrollment 

Reach, engage, and enroll future 
classes in a dynamic market with 
demographic headwinds 

Graduate 
Marketing

and 
Enrollment 

Secure enrollments and 
revenue in an evolving 
graduate, online, and 
adult learner market 

Student 
Success

Support, retain, and 
empower students in 
college and beyond 

Data and 
Analytics 

Improve decision-making and 
accelerate innovation with a modern 

data and analytics infrastructure 

Advancement 

Meet aspirational giving 
goals in an era of competing 

fundraising priorities and 
shifting donor interest

We partner with 2,800+ institutions to accelerate 
progress, deliver results, and enable lasting change.

95%+ of our partners return to us year after 
year because of results we achieve, together.

K12 • Community Colleges • Four-Year Colleges and Universities • Graduate, Professional, and Adult Programs • Employers eab.com



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

4Worcester State’s Goals are at the Center 

Eleanor Nexsen
Managing Director
Partner Success

Erica Krasienko
Director

Audience Generation

Leading a Team of Experts Backing Worcester State’s Success

Data 
Scientist

Marketing 
Strategy Expert

Project 
Manager

Campaign 
Data Manager

TargetX
Integration

Web 
Designer

Subject Matter 
Experts

Strategic 
Analyst

Targeting 
Analyst

Digital
Marketer

Market Insights 
Analyst

Art 
Director

Copywriter

Account 
Manager

UX Design 
Experts

Lauren Kennedy
Senior Strategic Leader

Partner Success

Detajha Woodson
Account Manager
Partner Success



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

Unlock Every Recruitment Advantage with Enroll360

Enroll360 Products to Elevate Student Awareness and Engagement with Worcester State

Enroll360 Solutions to Outperform the Market at Every Stage of the Funnel

Audiences

Build awareness and influence 
and grow applications with 
leads from our expansive 
ecosystem.

Engage Gen Z in immersive 
virtual tours that tell your 
brand story and build affinity. 

AidApply Cultivate Yield 

Tours

Powered by the Leading Student-Facing Platforms

What Makes Enroll360 
Solutions Different

Differentiated 
Creative

Expert Audience 
Generation

Intelligent 
Analytics+ +

Tailored partnerships that work in concert to generate unmatched search, recruitment, and yield results. 



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

6Every Student Takes a Unique Path to Enrollment 

+

.edu

.edu

The Future of Search Is Nonlinear



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

7Insights and Strategies at Scale 

We Test Everything - 184% Increase in Split A/B Tests Between 23 & 24

3.6M
Prospective students in 

the Appily Audience 

Leverage Proprietary 
Audience Platforms

Build a continuously 
evolving and customized 

portfolio of sources

De-anonymized web hits 
from .edu sites this year

Uncover Stealth 
Interest

Use advanced technologies 
to find and market to 

stealth prospects 

12M30M+
Names purchased from 
College Board this year 

Experts At Finding 
Right Fit Names 

Use extensive data to determine 
optimal search parameters, 

markets, and purchase timing

Obsessively Monitor and Recalibrate
Your dedicated team closely manages and fine-tunes your 

strategy throughout the year.



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

ROADMAP
8

1 Who Are We?

2

Partnership Summary and Ecosystem 3

What’s Next4

State of Enrollment Sector



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

9

Change in First Year Enrollment by Sector and Selectivity
Entering Class 2019 to 2024, Indexed Relative to 2019

Source: National Student Clearinghouse

100% 100% 100%

84%

93%
96%

81%

94%

100%

87%

98%
102%

85%

99%
102%

86%
91%

95%

70%

77%

84%

91%

98%

105%

Public 2-Year Public 4-Year Private 4-Year

100% 100% 100% 100%

96%

92% 91%

97%98%

91%
93%

104%
101%

96%

100%
103%104%

98%
100%

103%

96%

88% 89%

97%

70%

77%

84%

91%

98%

105%

112%

Less
Selective

Competitive Very
Competitive

Highly
Selective

100% 100% 100% 100%
102%

96%

91%

98%97% 96%
99%

111%

106%

98%

102%

109%
106%

97%

102%

111%

99%

88%

93%

105%

70%

77%

84%

91%

98%

105%

112%

Less
Selective

Competitive Very
Competitive

Highly
Selective

Public 2-Year Public 4-Year Private 4-Year

19

Public 4-Year Private 4-Year

20 21

2019 
Benchmark

22 23 24 19 20 21 22 23 24 19 20 21 22 23 24



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

10Average Apps per Student Continue to Grow
Self-Reported Naviance Average Submitted Applications per Student

* EC 2024 and EC 2025 through the end of October, all other years are final

6.7 7.4
8.7 8.7 9.0

0

2

4

6

8

10

EC 2021 EC 2022 EC 2023 EC 2024* EC 2025*



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

11

Naviance Students Are Increasingly Applying to 
“Reach” Schools

Source: Naviance Student Survey (PowerSchool, 
2023).

28%

48%

25%

32%

45%

23%

36%

42%

22%

38%
41%

21%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Reach Match Safety

2020 2021 2022 2023

Share of Applications by Academic Match
Entering Class 2020 to 2023



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

12

National Average Yield Rate Has Declined 
Every Year Since 2009

Source: IPEDS and UCLA Freshman Survey

National Average Yield Rate by Institution Type
Entering Class 2009 to 2022

35.5%34.7%34.3%
33.2%

32.3%
31.3%30.6%

29.1%28.4%
27.4%

26.0%

22.9%22.3%
21.2%

27.2%
26.2%

25.1%
24.2%

23.2%22.4%22.1%21.4%21.2%20.8%20.0%
18.0%18.4%17.6%

15.9%

31.5%

12.0%

24.0%

36.0%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Public Institutions

Private Institutions

% of Students Submitting >7 Apps



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

13Your Enrollment: More Than Demographic Decline

College-Going RatesDemographic Decline Market Share

Projected decline 
in number of 18-
year-olds, 
2025 – 2030

-12%
Decline in share 
of HS Grads 
entering college, 
2012-2022

-7.9%
Of enrollment 
changes 
explained by 
market share 

65%

Undergraduate 
Enrollment Outlook

The Critical Threats That Continuously Shape Your Enrollment

Source: Projections from The Agile College, Dr. Nathan Grawe, 2021; EAB analysis of American 
Community Survey data;  EAB Analysis of IPEDS Fall Enrollment Data. 

13



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

14Looking Back to Look Forward

Source: EAB Analysis of IPEDS Fall Enrollment Data. 

Fi
rs

t-
Ti

m
e 

S
tu

de
nt

s 

Where Our Analysis Starts: Historical Enrollments of First-Time Undergrads 
at Worcester State University
Fall First-Time Undergraduate Students 2010 to 2022

815 799

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1,000

Year

Historical Enrollments 

-2%

-16

2010-2022

Students

Pct. Chg. 

Included in This Analysis

• Fall first-time degree/for-
credit certificate seeking 
undergrad enrollments

• Full-time and part-time 
students 

• Students who enrolled in 
college courses during 
high school 

14



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

15Which Forces Drove Past Enrollment Shifts? 

Source: EAB Analysis of IPEDS Fall Enrollment Data, WICHE Knocking at the College 
Door Data, and American Community Survey Data; EAB Interviews and Analysis. 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 F

ir
st

-T
im

e 
S
tu

de
nt

s 

Dem. 
Change

How Demographics, College-Going Rates, and Market Share Help Explain Past 
Enrollment Trends For Worcester State University 

College-
Going Rates

Market 
Share

-18 Students

Demographic Change

-151 Students

College-Going Rate

+149 Students

Market Share Change

-16 Students

Overall Enrollment Change

-2% change from 2010 levels

Cumulative Change From 2010 by Enrollment Force Cumulative Impact of Each Force 
from 2010-2022

 -200

 -150

 -100

 -50

 0

+50

+100

+150

+200

+250

2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020 2022

+4 Students

International & Unknown Origin

Intl. & 
Other

15



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

16Building A Baseline Future Enrollment Scenario

Source: EAB Analysis of IPEDS Fall Enrollment Data, WICHE Knocking at the College Door Data, and American 
Community Survey Data; Grawe, Nathan, The Agile College (Data file);  EAB Interviews and Analysis. 

Cumulative Estimates for Demographics, College-Going Rates, and if Market Share Trends Persist

To
ta

l F
ir
st

-T
im

e 
S
tu

de
nt

s 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1,000

2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035

-76 Student Change

Add: Demographics Impact

-16 Student Change

Add: College-Going Rate Impact

-92 Student Change

Overall Projected Change by 
2035, excluding Market Share 

Adding Up Our Projections for Worcester State University Through 2035

+

=

Historical 
Enrollment
2022 Enroll. 
Level

Add: Dems. 
Impact
Add: College-
Going Impact

16



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

17Introducing A 'New' Group of Non-Consumers

Source: EAB interviews and analysis.

Non-
Consumers

Lack Access to College

Prospects want to enroll, but 
face barriers

Don’t Believe in College

Prospects don’t want to enroll

Our Focus TodayYou’re Familiar With…

Large, but Stable Population Smaller, but Growing Population

Unable to Pay 
for College

Unsure of the 
Value of College

Unfamiliar with 
Admissions Processes

Not Motivated to Engage 
in Admissions Process

View College as 
Unattainable

View College as a 
Pathway to Poverty



©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com©2024 by EAB. All Rights Reserved. eab.com

18Wealthier Families Drive Growth in Non-Consumers 

1) The structure of the ACS survey does not allow us to estimate the 
family income of students who do not live with their families.

EAB Analysis of American Community Survey Data. 

Higher Income Non-Consumers a 
Smaller, But Growing Population

+253K
Family Income Above $100K

0.0 M

0.2 M

0.4 M

0.6 M

0.8 M

1.0 M

1.2 M

1.4 M

1.6 M

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

19
-2

0 
Ye

ar
 H

S
 G

ra
ds

 –
 N

o 
C
ol

le
ge

$0k-$50k

$50k - $100K

$100K - $150K

$150K - $300K

$300K+

19-20 Year-old Non-Consumers Who Live at Home1 – 
Split By Household Income (Constant 2021 dollars)

Change 2012-21

38% Of Non-Consumers in 2021

Mid/Lower Income Non-Consumers 
a Larger, But Stable Population

-11K
Family Income Below $100K

Change 2012-21

62% Of Non-Consumers in 2021

Full-Pay Prospects Increasingly At Risk?



202-747-1000 | eab.com

@eab @WeAreEAB@eab_ @eab.life



Preparing for a “Campaign”
Worcester State University



Preparing for Campaign in 2025

This year, Worcester State will determine the focus, timeline, and funding 
goal for its next campaign. This includes:

• Developing and testing the Case for Support
• Defining, budget, funding, policies and timing
• Determining a campaign goal
• Engaging key volunteers (Campaign Readiness Workgroup)
• Continuing to optimize advancement Fundamentals

1/6/2025 2



The Work Began Over a Year Ago

Over the past year, Worcester State has dedicated time and resources to 
enhance its Advancement organization in preparation for a campaign. 

• Assessed Advancement Operations
• Restructured and hired new leadership
• Analyzed prospect data
• Migrated to leading edge fund management system

1/3/2025 2



Campaign Fundamentals

4



What is a Campaign?

1/6/2025 5

A campaign is a multi-year fundraising effort to achieve goals that support an 
organization’s vision and address both immediate and long-term needs. It is:

A Collective Aspiration
Special
Highly Intensive
Dynamic and Evolving
Strategic & Focused

A campaign’s success is defined by what can be accomplished if the goals are 
designed, funded, and implemented. 



Benefits & Types of Campaigns

Benefits
•Fundraising structure
•Strategic Alignment
•Sense of urgency 
•Engagement opportunities
•Strengthen Market Position 
•Share and promote vision

Types
•Capital
•Endowment
•Operating Support
•Comprehensive
•Mini/Bridge



Key Roles in a Campaign

1/6/2025 7

Lead the campaign, manage donor relationships, and 
communicate progress.Advancement Team

Serve as the campaign’s visionary and public face, lead 
major gift efforts, and inspire campus buy-in.President

Plan and prioritize goals, engage donors, and promote the 
campaign.Campus Leadership

Support the mission, identify prospects, and share 
campaign impact.

Campus 
Community

Advocate for the campaign, engage donors, and 
encourage participation.

Campaign & 
Alumni Volunteers



The Role of Trustees & Foundation Board

• Approve the campaign; Understand mission and strategic priorities
• Ensure appropriate staffing and funding 
• Lead the way in giving; 100% participation of both boards is critical
• Make Worcester State a top philanthropic priority
• Identify, introduce potential prospects
• Support with key activities:

• identify, introduce, cultivate, engage, solicit, steward



Determining Campaign Goal & Timing

Campaign 
Goal & 
Timing

Cost of Priorities/ 
Aspirations

Narrow or Broad Gift 
Pyramid?

Prospect Inclination 
and Connectedness

Resource 
Requirements –

Staffing+

Projections for 
Leadership Gift phase



Campaign Investment

• Budget Factors: Campaign size, goals, timeline, prospect pool, and 
available resources.

• “Typical” Budget: 8%-12% of the campaign goal.
• Key Costs Include:

• Staffing
• Fundraising consultants
• Marketing and communications
• Technology and analytics
• Cultivation and stewardship

1/6/2025 10



Ways to Fund Campaigns

• University Support
• Endowment Management Fees
• Unrestricted Gifts
• Float (Short-term Interest)
• Gift Fees
• Alternative Investments

1/6/2025 11



How to Know We’re Campaign Ready?

• The Case is Clear and Inspiring
• Leadership Alignment
• Engaged Donors
• Capacity is Defined
• Volunteer Leadership is Established
• Staff and Systems are Prepared



Roadmap to Worcester State’s Campaign

1/6/2025 13



President’s/Institutional Vision

Institutional Priorities

Campaign Priorities

Themes and opportunities

Preliminary Case

Testing Case

Volunteer/Staff Organization

Marketing Tools

Donor Activity

We are here

Progression from Vision to Campaign Readiness



Phases of a Campaign (Phase 1)

1 – Pre-Planning
2 – Silent Phase 
Leadership or Nucleus
3 – Public or Community
4 – Post-campaign 
assessment 

Institutional Vision & Direction
Preliminary Case for Support

Continued Internal/Operational Work

External Testing 
(Interviews, Potential Survey)

Campaign Goal, Budget, Plan presented to 
WSU Leadership for approval and funding

Now – Spring/
Early Summer 2025

Summer/
Fall 2025

Spring/Early 
Summer 2025



Working “Master” Priority List –
$30M-$50M in Aspirations

Campus Centers 
o Campus Ministry  
o Center for K-12 Education/Educational 

Equity
o Community Garden
o Thea’s Pantry
o First Generation
o Entrepreneurship
o Faculty Development Center

Experiential Learning 
o Study Away Programs
o Internships
o Co-ops
o Summer undergraduate research

Scholarships (Merit) 
Equipment 
o Communications
o Nursing
o Wet labs
o Biotech/Stem

Distinguished professorships Endowed ($100-
$250K each)
Facilities:
o Campus Edge 
o Coughlin Field
o Learning Resource Center
o Instructional Spaces (tech, HVAC, electrical)
o Athletic Training Faciliities

1/6/2025 16

• Note: This fundraising initiative should aim to capitalize on the State’s endowment match and to invest in STEM



Next Steps 

As we prepare to present our plan for Worcester State's next campaign, we will focus on 
the following:

• Develop and test the Case for Support, including strategic fundraising priorities
• Finalize budget
• Engage key volunteers and leadership
• Optimize advancement work
• Campaign plan development

Looking Ahead:
We are committed to aligning Worcester State’s vision, strategy, and resources to ensure 
campaign success and to inspire the Worcester State community.

1/6/2025 17



Discussion

1/6/2025 18



WORCESTER STATE UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

FINANCE & FACILITIES MEETING
Tuesday, January 14, 2025

3:00 P.M.
Wellness Center, Room 204

Meeting Called By: Lawrence Sasso (Chair) Minutes: Nikki Kapurch

Board Members: Lawrence Sasso(Chair); Dina Nichols; Amy Peterson; Marina Taylor (Vice Chair)

WSU Staff: Barry Maloney; Ashlynn Allain; Kathy Eichelroth; Carl Herrin; Nikki Kapurch; Lois Wims

All documents considered to be drafts until discussed and/or approved by the Board

AGENDA

ITEM RESPONSIBLE ACTION

1. Administrative Business
A. Call to Order Dr. Lawrence Sasso

2. Presentation

A. FY 2024 Federal Financial Aid Audit Report*

B. FY 2025 Quarter 1 Trust Fund Reports*

Kathy Eichelroth

Laura Pizzimenti A. vote required
B. informational

3. Administrative Updates
A. Other Business Dr. Lawrence Sasso

4. Adjournment Dr. Lawrence Sasso 4. vote required

*Attachments



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 

(AN  AGENCY  OF  THE  COMMONWEALTH  OF  
MASSACHUSETTS) 

FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 
AND  MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

WITH  SUPPLEMENTARY  INFORMATION  AND 
OTHER  REPORTS 

YEARS  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024  AND  2023 

AND 

INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR’S  REPORT 



 
 

 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

 
FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

AND  MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 
WITH  SUPPLEMENTARY  INFORMATION  AND  OTHER  REPORTS 

 
YEARS  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024  AND  2023 

TABLE  OF  CONTENTS 

 Page 

Independent Auditor’s Report 1 - 3 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 4 - 14 

Financial Statements:  

Statements of Net Position 15 - 16 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 17 - 18 

Statements of Cash Flows 19 - 20 

Notes to Financial Statements 21 - 46 

Required Supplementary Information:  

Schedule 1 - Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 47 

Schedule 2 - Schedule of University Pension Contributions 48 

Notes to Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share of the  
 Net Pension Liability and Schedule of University Pension Contributions 49 - 50 

Schedule 3 - Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability 51 

Schedule 4 - Schedule of University OPEB Contributions 52 

Notes to Schedule of the University’s Proportionate Share of the  
 Net OPEB Liability and Schedule of University OPEB Contributions 53 -55 

Supplemental Schedule Pursuant to the Uniform Guidance:  

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 56 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 57 - 58 

Other Reports:  

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards 59 - 60 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over 
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 61 - 62 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 63 - 64 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 65 
 



  BOLLUS    LYNCH 
 

Bollus Lynch, LLP 

An Independent Member of the BDO Alliance USA 

89 Shrewsbury Street  •  Worcester, MA  01604 

p - 508.755.7107  •  f - 508.755.3896 

Bolluslynch.com  
 

INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR’S  REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
Worcester State University 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of 
Worcester State University (an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) (the “University”), as of and for the 
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
University’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities and discretely presented component unit of Worcester State 
University, as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards).  Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required 
to be independent of the University and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the University’s ability to continue as a going concern for 
12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial 
doubt shortly thereafter. 



 

2 

INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR’S  REPORT 
(Continued) 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.  Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
University’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 
doubt about the University’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the 
audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis on pages 4 through 14 and certain information pertaining to liabilities recorded in accordance with 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than 
Pensions on pages 47 through 55 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information is the 
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
  



 

3 

INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR’S  REPORT 
(Continued) 

Supplementary Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
University’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated ________________, 2024, on 
our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is 
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Worcester, Massachusetts 
___________________, 2024 



 
 

 

MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 
(UNAUDITED) 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

 
 

4 

As management of Worcester State University, we offer readers of Worcester State University’s financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Worcester State University for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2024.  This discussion is provided by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial 
statements and notes thereto. 

Worcester State University was founded in 1871 and is one of nine comprehensive public colleges/universities in the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  The University affirms the principles of liberal learning as the foundation for all 
advanced programs of study and offers programs in the traditional liberal arts and science disciplines, while 
maintaining its historical focus on teacher education.  The University offers 59 undergraduate majors and minors, 29 
graduate programs, 82 study abroad programs, and a student-to-faculty ratio of 17:1.  The University currently has 
4,734 full and part-time undergraduate students and 877 full and part-time graduate and professional students. 

Financial Highlights  

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Worcester State University exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $78,434,477 inclusive of year end 
accruals related to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
(net position) of $22,300,193. 

 The University’s total net position increased by $8,881,910.  Pension and insurance expense decreased by 
$7,435,204, as a result of recording the University’s portion of the Commonwealth’s postretirement 
obligations.  When the Commonwealth’s postretirement obligation adjustments are removed from the 
University’s operating expenses, “Pension and insurance” costs as reported on Schedule 6 of the 
accompanying supplementary information, increases to $20,314,141 in FY 2024, and $17,107,964 in FY 
2023.  In addition, the University’s total change in net position at June 30, 2024 is reduced to $1,446,706, and  
at June 30, 2023 is reduced to $1,463,668. 

 The University’s Net Position as June 30, 2024 was $78,434,477.  Unrestricted Net Position from Operations 
as of June 30, 2024 was $69,347,687.  The healthy operational reserves is offset by the University’s allocation 
of the Commonwealth’s accumulated Net Retirement Obligations of $14,186,711 related to Pensions and 
$27,553,212 related to OPEB, resulting in Net Unrestricted Reserves of $27,607,764. 

 Residence Life and Housing experienced a $3,190,947 reduction in Net Position in FY 2024.  The adoption of 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87), requires the reclassification of remitted MSCBA annual 
assessments to interest expense and a reduction of the accumulated outstanding lease liability for contracted 
use of the facilities.  In addition, the value of the leased facilities are reported as assets on the Statement of Net 
Position and require an annual posting to amortize those assets.  The value of the assets at June 30, 2024 is 
$74,229,627 and the outstanding lease obligations related to the assets as of June 30, 2024 is $89,522,294. 

 Residence Life and Housing Net position as of June 30, 2024 was ($11,290,867).  Further analysis of Net 
Position identifies the value of designated net future lease payments of ($15,292,667) and accumulated 
operating reserves of $4,001,802, at June 30, 2024. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 
 

5 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Worcester State University’s basic financial 
statements.  Worcester State University’s basic financial statements comprise two components: 1) the financial 
statements and 2) the notes to the financial statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in 
addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

The Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Worcester State University’s 
finances in a manner similar to a private sector college.  The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of 
the University’s assets and deferred outflows of resources, as well as liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with 
the difference between these reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the University is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the University’s 
net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. the 
accrual for compensated absences). 

The Statement of Cash Flows is reported on the direct method.  The direct method of cash flow reporting portrays net 
cash flows from operations as major classes of operating receipts (e.g. tuition and fees) and disbursements (e.g. cash 
paid to employees for services).  The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements 34 and 35 require 
this method to be used. 

The financial statements and related footnotes are presented separately from this Management Discussion and Analysis. 

The University reports its activity as a business-type activity using the full accrual measurement focus and basis of 
accounting.  The University is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  Therefore, the results of the 
University’s operations, its net position and cash flows are also summarized in the Commonwealth’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report in its government-wide financial statements. 

Notes to the financial statements:  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the financial statements and are presented separately. 

Other information:  In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains certain 
required supplementary information concerning Worcester State University. 

Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indication of Worcester State University’s financial 
position.  In the case of Worcester State University, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources by $78,434,477 at the close of Fiscal Year 2024. 

By far the largest portion of the Worcester State University’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. 
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding, 
including capital leases.  Worcester State University uses these capital assets to provide services to students, faculty and 
administration; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Worcester State University’s 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt and lease obligations. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 
 

6 

Worcester State University’s Net Position as of 
June 30, 2024, with comparative data as of June 30, 2023 

 2024  2023 

Current and other assets $ 92,339,555  $ 84,629,883 
Capital assets  170,577,248   183,248,329 

  Total assets  262,916,803   267,878,212 

Deferred outflows of resources  4,194,610   5,960,532 

Non-current outstanding liabilities  141,463,390   157,436,480 
Other liabilities  20,738,703   18,739,853 

  Total liabilities  162,202,093   176,176,333 

Deferred inflows of resources  26,474,843   28,109,845 

Net position      
 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt  49,253,033   55,204,772 
 Restricted  1,573,680   1,386,348 
 Unrestricted  27,607,764   12,961,447 

  Total net position $ 78,434,477  $ 69,552,567 

The following schedule presents an analysis of Worcester State University’s net position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively: 

 2024  2023 

Invested in capital assets, net $ 49,253,033  $ 55,204,772 

Restricted reserves, expendable for:      
Other   1,661,870   1,481,912 
Capital projects  (88,190)   (95,564) 

  Total restricted reserves, expendable  1,573,680   1,386,348 

Unrestricted net position      
 Unrestricted reserves from operations  69,347,687   62,136,575 

Accumulated Commonwealth of Massachusetts retirement obligations - 
Pension  (14,186,711)   (16,306,275) 

Accumulated Commonwealth of Massachusetts retirement obligations - 
OPEB  (27,553,212)   (32,868,853) 

  Total net unrestricted reserves  27,607,764   12,961,447 

  Total net position $ 78,434,477  $ 69,552,567 

 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 
 

7 

A portion of the Worcester State University’s net position (2.41%) as of June 30, 2024, represent funds that are subject 
to external restrictions on how they must be used.  Unrestricted net reserves from operations of $69,347,687 at June 30, 
2024 may be used to meet the University’s ongoing obligations to its stakeholders.  The University’s net position 
increased by $8,881,910 during the year ended June 30, 2024.  At the end of the current fiscal year, Worcester State 
University reports a positive balance in restricted reserves, a positive balance in unrestricted reserves from operations 
and accumulated net negative obligations for the allocated share of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts pension and 
OPEB plans. 

The University’s primary reserve ratio, calculated as expendable net position divided by total expenses, is 56.23% and 
53.04%, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.  This ratio provides a snapshot of financial 
strength and flexibility by indicating the percent of operating expenses that could be funded by expendable reserves 
without relying on additional net position generated by operations. 

The implementation of GASB 68 and GASB 75 requires the annual accrual of the University’s allocation of the 
Commonwealth’s Net Pension and OPEB Liability.  The University had a reduction of $7,435,204 in accrual of 
pension and insurance expense in FY 2024 and a reduction of $4,824,389 in FY 2023 to reflect the University’s 
allocation of the Commonwealth’s accrued obligation of Pension and OPEB liabilities. 

The application of GASB 68 and GASB 75 requires certain reporting and disclosures with regard to the Massachusetts 
State Employees’ Retirement System (MSERS) and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Other Post-Employment 
Benefit (OPEB) Plan.  The authority for establishing and amending these provisions rests with the Massachusetts 
Legislature, Chapter 32A of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  The allocation provided to the 
University from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Comptroller’s Office reflects the University’s proportionate 
share of the net pension and OPEB liability related to its participation in MSERS and OPEB.  The University’s 
participation in MSERS and OPEB is directly related to the share of annual payroll subject to retirement assessment 
that is funded from campus-based resources in contrast to payroll expended from annual operating appropriations 
allocated to the University from Commonwealth resources.  In FY 2024 annual payroll subject to retirement assessment 
that was funded from campus-based resources was $6,936,263; total payroll costs subject to retirement assessment for 
FY 2024 was $44,622,922. 

The University’s return on net position ratio, calculated as the change in total net position divided by total net position 
– beginning of the year, is 12.81% and 9.94%, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.  This 
ratio measures total economic return including capital investment and positive operating results.  An improving trend 
indicates increasing net position which provides for increased financial flexibility.  The positive return for the year 
ended June 30, 2024, is better than was expected given that the FY 2024 operating budget relied on a draw from 
reserves to balance operational costs that were expected to exceed budgeted revenue.  Annual fluctuations in the 
Commonwealth’s pension and OPEB accruals can significantly impact the return on net position ratio.  In FY 2024 the 
pension and OPEB accruals decreased by $7,435,204 contributing to the $8,881,910 increase in net position.  An 
adjusted calculation of the return on net position ratio, excluding pension and OPEB adjustments, reflects a ratios of 
2.09% and 2.31%  respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.   

The net operating revenue ratio is 1.91% and (1.07)%, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 
2023.  The ratio measures whether an institution is living within its available resources, however the calculation as 
defined does not include capital appropriations as an available operating resource.  Capital appropriations in FY 2024 
and FY 2023 provided the resources for expenses reported in the Operations and Maintenance of Plant expenditure 
category.  The revised ratios, inclusive of capital appropriations, are 6.91% and 5.32%, respectively, for the year ended 
June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.  Worcester State University strives to achieve an annual operating surplus as 
measured by this ratio as part of its long-term plan to improve its primary reserve ratio and maintain a healthy annual 
return on net position. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 
 

8 

Worcester State University’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the year ended June 30, 
2024 with comparative data for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

 2024  2023 

Operating Revenues      
 Tuition and fees, net of scholarships discounts and allowances $ 45,774,418  $ 48,160,282 
 Operating grants and contributions  25,369,972   16,863,012 
 Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises and other sources  608,397   1,022,708 

  Total operating revenues  71,752,787   66,046,002 

Operating Expenses      
 Instruction  44,244,040   40,587,936 
 Academic support  6,622,501   7,073,963 
 Student service  11,459,354   10,885,870 
 Institutional support  14,858,730   13,788,705 
 Operations and maintenance of plant  19,566,291   21,764,889 
 Scholarships  5,417,650   2,824,887 
 Depreciation  7,906,221   5,591,358 
 Debt service  587,539   1,889,568 
 Auxiliary enterprises  15,475,270   15,360,035 

  Total operating expense  126,137,596   119,767,211 

   Net operating loss  (54,384,809)   (53,721,209) 

Non-operating revenues       
 State appropriation, including fringe benefits provided to employees by 

the Commonwealth, net of tuition remitted to the Commonwealth  55,212,761   48,616,049 
 Federal Assistance  -         3,973,643 
 Investment income   1,565,922   (42,068) 
 Other and transfers  64,265   (114,122) 

  Total non-operating revenues  56,842,948   52,433,502 

 Loss before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses  2,458,139   (1,287,707) 

 Capital appropriations  6,423,771   7,575,764 

  Change in net position  8,881,910   6,288,057 

Net position - July 1  69,552,567   63,264,510 

Net position - June 30 $ 78,434,477  $ 69,552,567 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 
 

9 

During FY 2024 the University received its final installment of COVID related state ARPA funds of $1,366,275.  The 
funds were received as a state operating grant and were programed as an offset to operating expenditures in the FY 
2024 budget. in anticipation of sustained curtailment of revenue generating opportunities across University programs 
due to lasting effects of the pandemic.  In FY2023 the remainder of the federal COVID relief funds were expended by 
the University. 

Capital appropriations in FY 2024 included funding for the first year of the second five-year allotment of critical repair 
funds from the Commonwealth, in addition to DCAMM direct funding for the multiyear project to relocate 
underground electrical infrastructure.  The University also received one-time funding of environmental sustainability 
projects.  The nature of the majority of the work was for repair and rehabilitation of existing infrastructure and did not 
increase the value of those assets. 

State appropriations are reported net of the amount of in-state day school tuition collected by the University on behalf 
of the Commonwealth.  The in-state day tuition collected is remitted back to the Commonwealth as dictated by 
Massachusetts General Law.  Included in State appropriations are the fringe benefit costs for University employees paid 
by the Commonwealth.  Capital appropriations are funded by Massachusetts General Obligation Bonds which are 
issued to fund Commonwealth infrastructure improvements.  The funds are provided to the campus in the form of a 
capital grant and as such the University is not responsible for repayment of the funds.  

The following schedule details the Commonwealth appropriations received by the University for the years ending June 
30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

 2024  2023 

State Appropriations $ 38,924,137  $ 34,859,139 
Appropriations to cover fringe benefits provided to employees of the 

Commonwealth  16,668,157   14,121,017 
Tuition remitted back to the State  (379,533)   (364,107) 

Net appropriations  55,212,761   48,616,049 

Additional State capital appropriations  6,423,771   7,575,764 

Total appropriations $ 61,636,532  $ 56,191,813 



WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts)

MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS
(Continued)

10

Loss from Operations

State appropriations are a significant source of funding for the University.  Under GASB 35, appropriations are 
considered non-operating revenue.  As such, the University incurs a loss from operations.  The Commonwealth’s Board 
of Higher Education sets tuition for the day division.  The University’s Board of Trustees sets all fees and tuition of the 
Division of Graduate and Continuing Education.  The University’s Board of Trustees approves the annual budget with 
the intention of mitigating losses after consideration of Commonwealth appropriations while balancing educational and 
operational needs.  The following schedule presents Worcester State University’s incurred losses from operations for 
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

rcester
y.

2024 2023 Change

Net Tuition and Fee Revenue $ 45,774,418 $ 48,160,282 $ (2,385,864)
Other Revenue, net of Student Financial Aid 25,978,369 17,885,720 8,092,649
Operational Expenses (126,137,596) (119,767,211) (6,370,385)

Operating loss (54,384,809) (53,721,209) (663,600)

Direct State appropriations, fringe benefits for 
employees on the Commonwealth’s payroll, net 
of remitted tuition to the Commonwealth 55,212,761 48,616,049 6,596,712

Federal assistance -      3,973,643 (3,973,643)
Investment and non-operating income 1,630,187 (156,190) 1,786,377
Capital appropriations 6,423,771 7,575,764 (1,151,993)

Change in net position $ 8,881,910 $ 6,288,057 $ 2,593,853

Capital Assets and Debts of the University

Capital Assets:  Worcester State University’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2024 amounts to $170,577,248 
net of accumulated depreciation, compared to $183,248,329 net of accumulated depreciation and amortization as of 
June 30, 2023.  The University’s investment in capital assets includes, land (including improvements), building 
(including improvements,) furnishings and equipment, and books, in addition to capital leases and subscription based 
IT arrangements.

Capital assets are defined by the University and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts as assets with an initial, 
individual cost of $50,000 or greater.  Information about Worcester State University’s capital assets can be found in the 
notes to the financial statements.

In FY 2024 the University capitalized equipment leases at a cost of $608,934 and capitalized direct purchases of 
equipment at a cost of $380,520.  New subscription based IT arrangements valued at $1,643,487 where brought on as 
assets, while $769,701 worth of subscriptions have been removed as fully depreciated.

Long-Term Debt

Compensated Absences

The accrual for compensated absences consists of the long-term portion of sick and vacation pay relating to employees 
on the University’s payroll and is anticipated to be funded by future state appropriations.



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 
 

11 

MHEFA Financing  

On December 4, 2002, the University entered into a financing agreement with MHEFA to receive $14,000,000 for 
renovations to the Sullivan and Administration Buildings.  A call provision became available on this bond issue in 
December 2012.  As a result, the issue was refunded on December 18, 2012, with $10,585,000 MDFA Revenue Bonds, 
Worcester State University Series 2012.  There is no debt service reserve related to this issue.  Annual principal 
payments range from $665,000 to $875,000 through November of 2032. 

Massachusetts State College Building Authority (MSCBA) WSU Student Life Project 

MSCBA issued revenue bonds for various projects on December 20, 2012.  Included in the issue was a component to 
provide $15,000,000 of debt financing to Worcester State University’s Wellness Center in accordance with the 
Memorandum of Agreement between the Commonwealth, MSCBA and the University.  The proceeds from the bond 
issue, combined with funds earmarked by the University and General Obligation bond funds earmarked by the 
Commonwealth, provided the resources for construction of a new Wellness Center at WSU.  The Wellness Center is an 
asset of the Commonwealth and recorded as a fixed asset on the University’s financial records.  On July 1, 2020, 
MSCBA closed on a restructuring of outstanding debt from a multiple series of bonds including those issued to finance 
the Wellness Center.  The restructuring provided for debt service relief in FY 2023 with interest only payments during 
the year and a 50% reduction in principal payment in FY 2023.  On February 15, 2023, MSCBA initiated another 
restructuring of outstanding debt, including the last series of bonds issued to finance the Wellness Center.  This final 
piece of debt restructuring for the Wellness Center defers future principal payments to May of 2025.  In addition, the 
previously held Debt Service Reserve Funds of $249,214, were released to facilitate funding of the debt restructuring.  
The project debt remains on schedule to be extinguished in May 2042 with annual principal payments ranging from 
$342,496 to $742,778.  Campus trust funds provide the revenue source for the annual debt service. 

Right of Use Assets 

GASB Statement No. 87 Leases is effective July 1, 2021.  The statement requires leases previously recorded as 
operating leases to be recognized as a right-to-use lease asset and related lease liability for the term of the lease in 
accordance with the payment terms of the contract.  GASB Summary – Statement 87 states “A lease is defined as a 
contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset (the underlying asset) as specified in 
the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.” 

This change in presentation has a significant impact on the University’s financial statements when recording the long-
term lease agreements with the MSCBA.  The University has long-term lease agreements with the MSCBA for use of 
all of its residence halls; Chandler Village, Dowden Hall, Wasylean Hall and Sheehan Hall, in addition to the parking 
garage on lower campus. 

The University has other leases also affected by this change in presentation.  Other leased assets requiring a change in 
presentation include various information technology devices.   

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA), effective for periods 
after June 15, 2023.  The objective of this Statement is to provide accounting and financial reporting guidance for 
transactions in which a governmental entity contracts with another party for the right to use their software.  This 
Statement established requirements for subscription-based information technology agreements based on the GASB 
Statement No. 87 lease accounting standard, based on the foundational principle that IT subscription arrangements are 
financings of the underlying asset.  The adoption of this statement requires the University to recognize right to use 
subscription assets as capital assets and related subscription liabilities on the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 
2024 and 2023.  Previously, these agreements were expensed through the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 
 

12 

Economic Factors that will affect the Future 

Financial Resources 

Operations 

FY 2024 operating budget of $99,598,790 was build on the FY 2023 base budget plus $4,865,343 of additional costs 
mostly attributed to an increase in labor costs and fringe benefits.  The forecasted increase in costs was offset by 
cumulative cost savings of $3,009,139 achieved through the execution of cost saving strategies and initiatives.  
Budgeted revenue from operations of $91,826,717 was supplemented with an increase of the General Fee providing 
$1,656,000 in new revenue in addition to the final allocation of state ARPA funds of $1,366,275 and a budgeted draw 
from reserve of $4,749,798 to fill the gap.   

As in recent years, despite relying on reserve draws to balance the operating budget, FY 2024 will be closed without 
experiencing a draw on reserves to fund an operating deficit.  Reconciling the increase in net assets of $9,061,950 as 
reported in the Statement of Changes in Net assets, to remove the effects of various GASB June 30, 2024 accruals, 
results in a significantly reduced increase in net assets.  The results of FY2024 operations are further demonstrated in 
the Net Position Analysis on Schedule 5.  The need to draw on reserve for operations during the year was mitigated by 
the continued vacancy factor in full time positions with realized savings being compounded by savings in the fringe 
benefit lines. 

The FY 2025 budget as approved by the Board of Trustees in June reflects an increase in resources partly due to an 
increase in the Fringe Benefit Rate provided to us by the State Comptroller’s Office.  The rate increase from FY 2024 
to FY 2025 is estimated at $1.1M.  The State Appropriations figure has increased in FY 2025 over FY 2024 as a result 
of collective bargaining funds and formula funding received in FY 2024 that are rolled in to the base going forward.  
Total campus generated revenue, identified as General Trust Fund resources, have trended down during FY 2024 in 
comparison with budget. Adjustments have been made to the revenue budget for FY 2025 to reflect this trend.  The 
General Fee increase authorized by the board at the April meeting will increase General Trust Fund resources by 
$1,636,000.  Total resources budgeted for FY 2025 stands at $95,970,451, an increase of 2.7% over the prior year. 

FY 2025 budgeted expenditures begin with the FY24 base.  This figure has been adjusted to add the annual adjustment 
for assessed fringe and payroll tax, in addition to projected increases to direct labor costs associated with rulings from 
the US Department of Labor, and a scheduled increase in annual debt service related to the 2002 Bonds that funded the 
Sullivan Academic Center.  Furthermore, the base funding of numerous budget categories will be increased by 6% in 
an effort to counteract the reduction in purchasing power brought on by increased inflation in recent years.  Reductions 
to expenditures include the savings associated with the closing of underperforming programs, the final few months of 
budgeted off campus parking and shuttle costs, a reduction in the cost of convenience fees and some initial savings in 
instruction costs realized through the course scheduling demonstration project under the Operational Excellence 
initiative, to arrive at budgeted operating expenditures of $105,462,351 for FY 2024, a 5.9% increase over the prior 
year. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 
 

13 

The operating budget gap identified for FY 2025 was $9,491,900.  Resources to fill the gap include the performance 
based formula funds from FY 2024 that have been added to the base appropriation, in addition to an increase in the 
General Fee for all undergraduate day courses and an increase to tuition/fees for courses offered through the 
Department of Graduate and Continuing Education.   Budgeted resources include a $500 annual increase to the General 
Fee that is assessed to all undergraduate students on a per credit basis.  This is a 5% increase in mandatory 
undergraduate student fees bringing the total annual cost to $10,816, which expected to be less than the mandatory 
student fees at five of the other state universities in Massachusetts. The Division of Graduate and Continuing Education 
has requested a 12% increase in tuition and fees to offset an anticipated increase in contract faculty costs in the coming 
year and alleviate financial constraints.  Increases will be put in place for the fall 2024 semester, and subsequent terms, 
for classes offered in the evening, winter and summer sessions, in addition to graduate courses and online degree 
programs  

WSU continues to experience the impact of post-Covid labor challenges.  Approximately 8% of approved positions are 
vacant, some of which have been intentionally deferred while others have been posted but not filled do to challenges in 
gathering a qualified applicant pool.  Various positions critical to operations have been filled with temporary staffing in 
order to ensure continuity of operations.  Savings have been realized in the direct labor costs over the past several years 
which has allowed us to avoid drawing from reserves to fund operations.  As a resource strategy in FY 2025 we have 
identified various vacant positions that will be suspended from the search process and deferred to a later date. The 
savings calculated include the annual pay and related costs of benefits and payroll tax and will be programed as a one-
time cost reduction in the FY 2025 budget.  

During FY 2024 the state distributed the campus allotted formula fund resources late in the budget cycle.  Instead of 
amending the budget to reduce the FY 2024 budgeted reserve draw the additional resources were received into the 
university and fell to the operational bottom line by reducing the need to draw from reserves to fund operations.  The 
FY 2024 allotment will be programmed as a resource for FY 2025 as an appropriation from FY 2024 surplus.  The 
remaining budget gap will be filled with an anticipated $2,702,204 draw from unrestricted General Fund reserves. 
While the most recent budgets have relied on draws from budgeted reserves, realized savings in direct labor costs due 
to unfilled vacancies have resulted in closing the fiscal years with expenditures less than budget deferring the need to 
use reserves for operations. 

The FY 2025 budget for the Residence Halls anticipates average room occupancy at 87% of capacity.   The occupancy 
rate is similar to the capacity used for FY 24 and reflects actual fall occupancy during FY 2024.  FY 2025 expenditures 
have increased over the prior year due to an increase in direct labor costs associated with collective bargaining 
increases and increase in the fringe rate, in addition to the resumption of the full cost of annual lease obligation 
payments to MSCBA subsequent to the savings realized from an MSCBA bond refunding in FY 2024.  Room rental 
rates for FY 2025 are increasing between 2-4%, however the resources provided are not sufficient to fully fund 
operating costs.  While the FY 2025 budget has been right sized to reflect reduced capacity there is a revenue gap of 
$1,312,649 that will be filled with reserves.  At June 30, 2024, the Residence Hall Trust Fund reported an accumulated 
operating reserve of $4,032,130 and accumulated net future lease payments of $15,292,667, resulting in a net negative 
position of $11,260,537.  

Over the past two years approximately $5M in savings have been derived from the initial work of the FSTF task force, 
and more recently, our focus on Operational Excellence (OpEx).  The OpEx team, led by the University’s institutional 
risk & compliance officer, continues to cultivate ideas from across the campus community while evaluating the 70 plus 
recommendations that came out of FSTF.  A website has been established and a dashboard to track results in real time 
is being developed.  In the coming year the OpEx Team is focusing on establishing a methodology to quantify savings 
achieved and expand its communication strategy to include education and training for internal constituents and 
networking with other institutions across the country that are actively engaging their campuses in lean higher education 
programs and other efficiency and risk mitigation programs. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
MANAGEMENT’S  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS 

(Continued) 
 

14 

Campus Infrastructure 

In June of 2018 the Commonwealth announced a plan to address the backlog of infrastructure repairs on Massachusetts 
Higher Education campuses.  The Governor’s Capital Investment Plan includes $250 million over a five year period 
(FY19-23) to address Critical Repairs.  Critical Repairs projects are smaller scale, building-specific, and involve 
renewal, repair and replacement of equipment and systems.  Critical Repairs projects are managed directly by the 
individual campuses.  The five-year allocation represents a new approach that provides predictable discretionary funds, 
allows more autonomy in campus prioritization over five years, and addresses the highest priority needs as identified 
through an independent facility condition assessment.  Worcester State University will have received $12.4 million of 
critical repairs funds through 2023.  When combined with projected local funding of 5% capital adaptation and renewal 
funds, the University is on track to invest $32.4 million in campus infrastructure repairs and improvements through 
2024. 

In June of 2022 the Commonwealth announced a second, five year-round of Critical Repair funds for the Massachusetts 
Higher Education Campuses.  An additional $250 million is being provided over a second five-year period (FY24 to 
FY 28).  Worcester State University will receive $12.1 million of the second round of critical repair funds through 
2028.  When combined with the campus funded match, resources dedicated to infrastructure repair for FY 2024 through 
FY 2028 will be $20.8 million.  Projects accomplished during FY 2024 included completion of the Sullivan Auditorium 
renovations, Learning Resource Center Roof replacement, boiler replacements and other crucial projects.  
Approximately $6.4M of work was accomplished during the year.  Projects anticipated in FY 2025 include roof and 
roof top unit replacements which will be accomplished during the summer months. 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Worcester State University’s finances for all those 
with an interest in the University’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Vice President of Administration 
and Finance, 486 Chandler Street, Worcester, MA  01602-2597.  

 



 

 

FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements. 

15 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
STATEMENTS  OF  NET  POSITION 

 
JUNE  30,  2024  AND  2023 

 
 
 

Worcester State University
2024 2023 2024 2023

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 34,902,397$       34,136,997$       4,775,905$         4,265,111$         
Cash held by State Treasurer 9,047,320           5,153,872           -                      -                      
Accounts receivable, net 4,486,610           2,523,229           90,000                255,210              
Current portion of loans receivable 14,000                75,000                -                      -                      
Current portion of contributions receivable -                      -                      1,333,553           654,675              
Inventories 169,644              216,155              113,798              90,421                
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 161,518              98,753                31,050                10,622                

Total current assets 48,781,489         42,204,006         6,344,306           5,276,039           

Non-current assets:
Investments 37,036,643         35,735,341         43,404,669         38,591,211         
Loans receivable, less current portion 256,825              210,129              -                      -                      
Contributions receivable, less current portion -                      -                      3,614,996           3,808,171           
Other non-current assets 6,264,598           6,480,408           150,533              72,516                
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 170,577,248       183,248,329       3,811,414           3,847,582           

Total non-current assets 214,135,314       225,674,207       50,981,612         46,319,480         

Total assets 262,916,803       267,878,213       57,325,918         51,595,519         

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Resources related to pension and OPEB obligations 3,868,705           5,609,260           -                      -                      
Loss on refunding of bonds payable 325,905              351,272              -                      -                      

Total deferred outflows of resources 4,194,610           5,960,532           -                      -                      

Worcester State Foundation
Component Unit

 



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements. 

16 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
STATEMENTS  OF  NET  POSITION 

 
JUNE  30,  2024  AND  2023 

(Continued) 
 
 

Worcester State University
2024 2023 2024 2023

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Current portion of bonds payable 1,037,496$         665,000$            22,595$              21,618$              
Current portion of lease obligations 4,382,533           3,533,165           -                      -                      
Current portion of subscription-based IT arrangements 1,063,775           670,150              -                      -                      
Accounts payable 2,143,345           3,401,514           865,824              173,759              
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits 4,807,102           4,698,690           -                      -                      
Accrued interest and other liabilities 88,910                95,564                111,850              54,791                
Funds held for others -                      -                      5,509                  5,509                  
Student deposits and unearned revenue 3,238,840           2,152,646           126,372              107,399              
Current portion of split-interest agreements -                      -                      20,223                7,493                  
Current portion of accrued workers' compensation 204,543              171,574              -                      -                      
Current portion of accrued compensated absences 3,772,159           3,351,550           -                      -                      

Total current liabilities 20,738,703         18,739,853         1,152,373           370,569              

Long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable, less current portion 18,052,584         19,471,679         383,700              408,153              
Lease obligations, less current portion 94,770,472         101,812,376       -                      -                      
Subscription-based IT arrangements, less current portion 1,869,537           1,703,579           -                      -                      
Split-interest agreements, less current portion -                      -                      32,002                64,568                
Accrued workers' compensation, less current portion 1,474,684           1,324,957           -                      -                      
Accrued compensated absences, less current portion 2,689,275           2,505,978           -                      -                      
Accrued pension and OPEB obligations 22,300,193         30,311,227         -                      -                      
Refundable grant - federal financial assistance program 306,645              306,684              -                      -                      

Total liabilities 162,202,093       176,176,333       1,568,075           843,290              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Resources related to pension and OPEB obligations 23,308,436         24,473,160         -                      -                      
Deferred service concession arrangements 2,781,594           3,193,369           -                      -                      
Gain on refunding of bonds payable 384,813              443,316              -                      -                      

Total deferred inflows of resources 26,474,843         28,109,845         -                      -                      

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net 49,253,033         55,204,772         -                      -                      
Restricted - non-expendable -                      -                      25,642,341         24,032,999         
Restricted - expendable 1,573,680           1,386,348           22,184,063         19,378,657         
Unrestricted 27,607,764         12,961,447         7,931,439           7,340,573           

Total net position 78,434,477$      69,552,567$      55,757,843$      50,752,229$      

Component Unit
Worcester State Foundation

 



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements. 

17 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
STATEMENTS  OF  REVENUES,  EXPENSES  AND  CHANGES  IN  NET  POSITION 

 
YEARS  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024  AND  2023 

 
 
 

Worcester State University
2024 2023 2024 2023

REVENUES
Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees 47,092,996$       43,977,503$       611,879$            500,896$            
Auxiliary enterprises, student housing 12,177,425         11,814,895         -                      -                      
Less: Scholarship discounts and allowance 13,496,003         7,632,116           -                      -                      

Net student tuition and fees 45,774,418         48,160,282         611,879              500,896              

Contributions -                      -                      1,749,764           6,635,973           
Federal grants and contracts 8,921,497           7,792,094           -                      -                      
State and local grants and contracts 11,153,952         5,516,957           -                      -                      
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 3,998,879           2,713,297           -                      -                      
Auxiliary enterprises, other 608,397              1,022,708           223,476              236,699              
Other operating revenues 1,295,644           840,664              420,065              291,159              

Total operating revenues 71,752,787         66,046,002         3,005,184           7,664,727           

EXPENSES
Operating expenses:

Instruction 44,244,040         40,587,936         -                      -                      
Academic support 6,622,501           7,073,963           -                      -                      
Student services 11,459,354         10,885,870         -                      -                      
Institutional support 14,858,730         13,788,705         1,309,546           1,409,594           
Operation and maintenance of plant 19,566,291         21,764,889         138,050              150,717              
Scholarship 5,417,650          2,824,887          1,059,135           823,392              
Depreciation 7,906,221           5,591,358           188,966              175,662              
Debt service 587,539              1,889,568           40,854                80,619                
Auxiliary enterprises 15,475,270         15,360,035         -                      -                      

Total operating expenses 126,137,596       119,767,211       2,736,551           2,639,984           

Operating income (loss) (54,384,809)        (53,721,209)        268,633              5,024,743           

Component Unit
Worcester State Foundation

 
  



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements. 

18 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
STATEMENTS  OF  REVENUES,  EXPENSES  AND  CHANGES  IN  NET  POSITION 

 
YEARS  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024  AND  2023 

(Continued) 
 
 

Worcester State University
2024 2023 2024 2023

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations 55,212,761         48,616,049         -                      -                      
Federal assistance -                      3,973,643           -                      -                      
Interest and investment income (loss) 1,565,922           (42,068)               5,037,397           3,560,057           
Other payments to Worcester State University -                      -                      (1,641,957)          (1,004,837)          
Other non-operating income (losses) 64,265                (114,122)             -                      (24,000)               

Net non-operating revenues 56,842,948         52,433,502         3,395,440           2,531,220           

Income (loss) before other revenues, 
expenses, gains, or losses 2,458,139           (1,287,707)          3,664,073           7,555,963           

Capital appropriations 6,423,771           7,575,764           -                      -                      
Additions to permanent endowments -                      -                      1,341,541           2,843,884           

Change in net position 8,881,910           6,288,057           5,005,614           10,399,847         

NET POSITION
Beginning of year 69,552,567         63,264,510         50,752,229         40,352,382         

End of year 78,434,477$       69,552,567$       55,757,843$       50,752,229$       

Component Unit
Worcester State Foundation

 
 
  



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements. 

19 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
STATEMENTS  OF  CASH  FLOWS 

 
YEARS  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024  AND  2023 

 
 
 

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Student tuition, fees and charges 41,192,347$     45,239,189$     
Federal grants and contracts 8,921,497         7,792,094         
State and local grants and contracts 11,153,952       5,516,957         
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 3,998,879         2,713,297         
Auxiliary enterprise charges 608,397            1,022,708         
Employee compensation and fringe benefit payments (76,065,120)     (70,057,683)     
Payments to suppliers (38,480,788)     (38,527,755)     
Interest paid (1,008,929)       (1,148,628)       
Loans repaid by students 14,304              19,543              
Other receipts (payments) (820,173)          1,408,686         

Net cash used in operating activities (50,485,634)     (46,021,592)     

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State appropriations 55,212,761       48,616,049       
Federal assistance -                   3,973,643         
Net deposits (8,723)              15,934              

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 55,204,038       52,605,626       

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital appropriations 6,423,771         7,575,764         
Purchases of capital assets (1,801,420)       (2,549,157)       
Principal payments of bonds payable (665,000)          (340,622)          
Principal payments on lease obligations (3,199,084)       (3,395,530)       
Principal payments on subscription-based IT arrangements (1,083,904)       (1,051,626)       
Perkins loan program, net funds paid (39)                   (39,367)            
Other activities 64,265              (114,122)          

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (261,411)          85,340              

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 48,593,794       9,353,305         
Purchases of investments (49,462,993)     (24,884,356)     
Interest and investment income 1,071,054         432,610            

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 201,855            (15,098,441)     

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 4,658,848         (8,429,067)       

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 39,290,869       47,719,936       

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 43,949,717$     39,290,869$     

Primary Government

 



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements. 

20 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
STATEMENTS  OF  CASH  FLOWS 

 
YEARS  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024  AND  2023 

(Continued) 
 
 

2024 2023

Reconciliation of operating loss to
net cash used in operating activities:

Operating loss (54,384,809)$   (53,721,209)$   
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

used in operating activities:
Depreciation expense 6,084,475         5,591,358         
Amortization of leased assets 5,960,905         6,162,606         
Amortization on subscription-based IT arrangements 1,077,156         1,067,264         
Amortization of other assets 215,810            215,810            
Accretion of deferred service concession arrangements (411,775)          (411,775)          
Decrease in deferred loss on refunding of bonds payable 25,367              25,368              
Decrease in deferred gain on refunding of bonds payable (58,503)            (24,629)            
Decrease in bond premium (381,599)          -                   
(Increase) decrease in operating assets and 

deferred outflows:
Accounts receivable, net (1,963,381)       848,869            
Loans receivable 14,304              19,543              
Inventories 46,511              (26,354)            
Prepaid expenses and other assets -                   73,757              
Resources related to pension and OPEB obligations 1,740,555         3,576,153         

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities and 
deferred inflows:

Accounts payable (1,258,169)       (422,422)          
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits 108,412            (698,110)          
Accrued interest and other liabilities (6,654)              (4,389)              
Accrued workers' compensation 182,696            (59,607)            
Student deposits and unearned revenue 1,094,917         34,721              
Accrued compensated absences 603,906            131,996            
Accrued pension and OPEB obligations (8,011,034)       (883,724)          
Resources related to pension and OPEB obligations (1,164,724)       (7,516,818)       

Net cash used in operating activities (50,485,634)$   (46,021,592)$   

Primary Government

 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

 
 

21 

1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization 

Worcester State University (the “University”) is a public, state-supported University, located in Worcester, 
Massachusetts.  The University is governed by a local Board of Trustees under the discretion of the Massachusetts 
Department of Higher Education.  As one of nine four-year, state-supported colleges and universities, the University 
is empowered to award baccalaureate and masters’ degrees in education and in the arts and sciences, as well as 
programs of continuing education. 

The University is an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the “State”, the “Commonwealth”).  
Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the conditions that would 
have existed if the University had been operated as an independent institution. 

Component units 

Worcester State Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) is a legally separate, tax-exempt component unit of the 
University.  The Foundation’s primary role is to prudently manage and steward privately contributed resources 
meant to supplement the resources that are available to the University in support of its programs.  The board of the 
Foundation is self-perpetuating and consists of graduates and friends of the University.  Although the University 
does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, 
that the Foundation holds and invests are restricted to the activities of the University by the donors.  Because these 
restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the University, the Foundation 
is considered a component unit of the University and is discretely presented in the University’s financial statements. 

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Foundation distributed $2,701,092 and $1,828,229, 
respectively, to the University for both restricted and unrestricted purposes.  Complete financial statements for the 
Foundation can be obtained from the Worcester State University Business Office at 486 Chandler Street, Worcester, 
MA 01602. 

Basis of presentation 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP).  
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing U.S. GAAP for state and 
local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). 

The University has determined that it functions as a business-type activity, as defined by GASB.  The effect of 
interfund activity has been eliminated from these financial statements.  The basic financial statements for general 
purpose governments consist of management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial statements including the 
University’s discretely presented component unit, and required supplementary information.  The University presents 
statements of net position, revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows on a University-wide 
basis. 

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of the related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
have been met.  The accompanying statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position demonstrates the 
degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable within a specific function.  Program revenues primarily include charges to students or 
others who enroll or directly benefit from services that are provided by a particular function.  Items not meeting the 
definition of program revenues are instead reported as general revenue. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

22 

1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (Continued) 

Basis of presentation  (continued) 

The University’s policies for defining operating activities in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Position are those that generally result from exchange transactions such as the payment received for services 
and payment made for the purchase of goods and services.  Certain other transactions are reported as non-operating 
activities in accordance with GASB accounting standards.  These non-operating activities include the University’s 
operating and capital appropriations from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and net investment income. 

Net position 

GASB establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for public colleges and universities.  These 
standards require that, for accounting and reporting purposes, resources be classified into four net position 
categories, described as follows: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Includes all capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and the principal balances of any outstanding debt or other obligations used to 
construct, acquire or improve the assets. 

Restricted net position - These resources are further differentiated between those that are 
nonexpendable and expendable. 

Nonexpendable resources are those that are subject to externally imposed constraints that they be 
maintained permanently. 

Expendable resources are those whose use is subject to externally imposed constraints that can be 
satisfied by specific actions or by the passage of time. 

Unrestricted - These resources are not subject to any externally imposed constraints.  Such net 
position may be designated for specific purposes by action of the governing Board. 

Accounting estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Subsequent events 

The University has evaluated the financial statement impact of subsequent events occurring through October 22, 
2024, the date that the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Cash, temporary investments, and investments 

The University considers its cash on hand, cash held by both the State Treasurer and Worcester State Foundation, 
Inc. for the benefit of the University and all debt securities with a maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

23 

1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (Continued) 

Cash, temporary investments, and investments  (continued) 

The University’s investments are recorded at fair value.  Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in 
non-operating revenues.  Realized gains and losses are determined based on the specific identification of the 
securities sold.  Investment income is recognized when earned.  The method of allocated interest earned on pooled 
cash and investments among fund types provides that, unless otherwise restricted, all interest is recorded in the 
unrestricted current fund.  All gains and losses arising from the sale, maturity, or other disposition of investments 
are accounted for in the trust fund which owns the related asset.  Ordinary income derived from investments is 
accounted for in the trust fund owning such assets. 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board requires government entities to categorize investments to give an 
indication of the level of credit risk assumed by the University at year end.  Category 1 includes investments that are 
insured or registered, or for which securities are held by the University or its agent in the name of the University.  
Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities are held by a trust department in 
the name of the University.  Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are 
held by a trust department but not in the University’s name. 

Fair value measurements 

The University follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application 
(GASB 72).  This Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. 

The University uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to 
determine fair value disclosures.  In accordance with GASB 72, the fair value of a financial instrument is the price 
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date.  Fair value is best determined based on quoted market prices.  However, in 
many instances, there may be no quoted market prices for the University’s various financial instruments.  In cases 
where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other 
valuation techniques.  Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount 
rate and estimates of future cash flows.  Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate 
settlement of the instrument. 

In accordance with GASB 72, the University groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally measured 
at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of 
the assumptions used to determine fair value. 

Level 1:  Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

Level 2:  Valuation is based on observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for 
similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are 
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the 
assets or liabilities. 

Level 3:  Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity 
and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.  Level 3 assets and liabilities include 
financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow 
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value 
requires significant management judgment or estimation. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

24 

1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (Continued) 

Fair value measurements  (continued) 

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of 
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.  The University’s component unit utilizes a similar 
market approach which uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving 
identical or comparable assets, liabilities or a group of assets and liabilities. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Accounts receivable are reported at the amount management expects to collect in the future on balances outstanding 
at year end.  Management estimates allowances for losses based on the history of collections and the knowledge 
acquired about specific items.  Adjustments to the allowance are charged to bad debt expense.  Interest is not 
charged on accounts receivable.  Uncollectible amounts are written off against the reserve when deemed 
uncollectible; recoveries are recorded when received.  An amount is considered uncollectible when reasonable 
efforts to collect the account have been exhausted.  

Inventories 

The University’s inventories consist primarily of operating supplies which are valued at the lower of cost or market.  
Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. 

Loans receivable and payable 

Loans receivable consist of the Federal Perkins Loan Program (“Perkins”).  The federal government provides 90% 
of the funds to support this program.  The 90% portion of the Perkins Loan Program provided by the federal 
government is refundable back to the federal government upon the termination of the University’s participation in 
the program. 

The prescribed practices for the Perkins program do not provide for accrual of interest on student loans receivable or 
for the provision of an allowance for doubtful loans.  Accordingly, interest on loans is recorded as received and loan 
balances are reduced subsequent to the determination of their uncollectibility and have been accepted (assigned) by 
the Department of Education. 

Capital assets 

Capital assets are controlled, but not owned by the University.  The University is not able to sell or otherwise 
encumber these assets since they are owned by the Commonwealth.  All capital assets acquired prior to June 30, 
1990 are stated at cost or estimated historical cost.  Capital assets acquired subsequent to June 30, 1990 are stated at 
cost.  All additions of individual capital assets greater than or equal to $50,000 are capitalized, in accordance with 
the Commonwealth’s capitalization policy.  Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair value at the 
date of the donation. 

Capital assets, with the exception of land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
life of the asset, which range from 3 to 40 years. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

25 

1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (Continued) 

Student deposits and unearned revenue 

Deposits and advance payments received for tuition and fees related to the University’s Summer Session II program 
are deferred and are recorded as unrestricted current funds unearned revenue. 

Bond premiums 

Bond premiums are being amortized on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method, over 
the terms of the related debt agreements. 

Funds held for others 

Funds held for others are agency funds consisting of resources held by the University as custodian or fiscal agent of 
student organizations, the State Treasurer and others.  Transactions are recorded to assets and liability accounts. 

State appropriations 

The University’s unrestricted State appropriations amounted to $55,592,294 and $48,980,156 for the years ended 
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  State supported tuition, in the amounts of $379,533 and $364,107 for the 
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, were remitted to the State and have been offset against these 
appropriations.  State supported tuition receipts and transfers have been recorded in an agency fund during the year 
with a net amount due from the Commonwealth of $51,891 and $18,953 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Pension plan 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Massachusetts State Employee’s Retirement System (MSERS) and additions to/deductions from MSERS’s 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MSERS.  For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

Other postemployment benefits plan (OPEB) 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions Plan and additions to/deductions from this plan’s 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts.  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

Compensated absences 

Employees earn the right to be compensated during absences for vacation leave and sick leave.  Accrued vacation 
leave is the amount earned by all eligible employees through June 30, 2024.  Pursuant to statewide experience on sick 
pay buy-back agreements applicable to state employees, the University accrues sick leave to a level representing 20% 
of amounts earned by those University employees with ten or more years of State service at the end of the fiscal year.  
Upon retirement, these employees are entitled to receive payment for this accrued balance. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

26 

1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (Continued) 

Fringe benefits 

The University participates in the Commonwealth’s fringe benefit programs, including health insurance, pension 
and workers’ compensation benefits.  Health insurance, pension and administrative costs are billed through a fringe 
benefit rate charged to the University.  The University’s workers’ compensation program is administered by the 
Commonwealth’s Division of Public Employee Retirement Administration.  Workers’ compensation costs are 
assessed separately based on the University’s actual experience. 

Trust funds 

The University’s operations are accounted for in different trust funds.  All of these trust funds have been 
consolidated and are included in these financial statements. 

Tax status 

The University is an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and is therefore exempt from federal and state 
income taxes under Code Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code.  The Foundation is exempt from income taxes 
under the provisions of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

New government accounting pronouncements  

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2023.  The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
updating the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences, aligning such guidance under a 
unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures.  Management has not completed its review 
of the requirements of this Standard and its applicability. 

GASB Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2024.  
The objective of this Statement is to provide users of GASB financial statements with essential information about 
risks related to vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints.  Management has not completed its 
review of the requirements of this Standard and its applicability. 

GASB Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements is effective for reporting periods beginning 
after June 15, 2025.  The objective of this Statement is to improve key components of the GASB financial reporting 
model to enhance its effectiveness in providing information that is essential for decision making and assessing 
accountability.  Management has not completed its review of the requirements of this Standard and its applicability. 

2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The University’s cash and temporary investments are as follows as of June 30, 2024 and 2023: 

 2024  2023 

Carrying amount $ 34,902,397  $ 34,136,997 

Bank balance $ 36,272,588  $ 35,619,053 
Less amounts      

Covered by depository insurance  820,280   1,517,619 
Collateralized repurchase agreements  32,687,748   29,433,566 

Remaining bank balance $ 2,764,560  $ 4,667,868 
 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

27 

2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (Continued) 

The differences between the carrying amounts and the bank balances are attributable to deposits-in-transit and 
outstanding checks.  While the remaining bank balance is uninsured and uncollateralized, the University has 
lowered its risk of loss by maintaining these funds in high quality financial institutions.  Further, as of June 30, 2024 
and 2023, the University held $158,304 and $64,155, respectively, in money market funds maintained by its 
investment custodian. 

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the University was party to a repurchase agreement with a bank.  The value of this 
agreement was $32,687,748 and $29,433,566 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The money market mutual funds constitute a Category 2 investment and the repurchase agreements constitute a 
Category 3 investment, as defined under GASB accounting standards. 

3 - CASH HELD BY STATE TREASURER 

The University has recorded cash held for the benefit of the University by the State Treasurer in the amounts of 
$1,932,782 and $1,967,941 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  In addition, the State Treasurer held cash 
for certain University trust funds in the amounts of $7,114,538 and $3,185,931 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively.  None of these cash balances are insured or collateralized. 

4 - INVESTMENTS 

The University maintains pooled investments in long-term U.S. Treasury and Agency Securities.  The fair value of 
these investments as of June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

 Investment Maturities (in years) 

June 30, 2024 
Fair 

Value  
Less 

Than 1  1 to 5  
Greater 
than 5 

Investment type            
 U.S. Treasuries $ 33,729,238  $ 16,665,252  $ 10,204,636  $ 6,859,350 
 U.S. Agencies  3,307,405   2,526,929   780,476   -       

Total $ 37,036,643  $ 19,192,181  $ 10,985,112  $ 6,859,350 

The fair value of these investments as of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

 Investment Maturities (in years) 

June 30, 2023 
Fair 

Value  
Less 

Than 1  1 to 5  
Greater 
than 5 

Investment type            
 U.S. Treasuries $ 33,194,938  $ 15,090,807  $ 13,081,800  $ 5,022,331 
 U.S. Agencies  2,540,403   90,000   2,450,403   -       

Total $ 35,735,341  $ 15,180,807  $ 15,532,203  $ 5,022,331 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

28 

4 - INVESTMENTS  (Continued) 

Interest Rate Risk 

The University does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing 
its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  The weighted average life of the maturities is 
evaluated regularly with the weighted average life of the portfolio being limited to five years or less, whenever 
possible.  The weighted average life of the portfolio as of June 30, 2024 was 2.4 years. 

Credit Risk 

The University manages its exposure to credit risk by investing solely in U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency securities. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The University places no limit on the amount that may be invested in one issuer, maintaining its cash in bank 
deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the University 
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party.  The University controls this risk by placing its securities in a trust account with a safekeeping agent other 
than the counterparty. 

The components of investment income are as follows: 

 2024  2023 

Interest $ 1,133,819  $ 441,198 
Realized gain (loss) on investments  83,914   (137,749) 
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments  348,189   (345,517) 

 $ 1,565,922  $ (42,068) 

Component Unit 

Investments of the component unit are stated at fair value and are composed of the following: 

 2024  2023 

 
Carrying 

Value  
Fair 

Value  
Carrying 

Value  
Fair 

Value 

Money market funds $ 122,390  $ 122,390  $ 402,113  $ 402,113 
Mutual funds  34,125,493   42,091,811   33,719,179   37,491,957 
Limited partnership interest  812,500   1,190,468   475,000   697,141 

 $ 35,060,383  $ 43,404,669  $ 34,596,292  $ 38,591,211 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

29 

5 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.  There have been 
no changes in the methodologies used as of June 30, 2024 and 2023. 

U.S. treasury securities and U.S. agency securities:  Valued at the closing price reported in the market 
in which the individual securities are traded.  Fair value hierarchy for each is based on the level of 
active trading within the respective markets for each asset or liability. 

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable 
value or reflective of future fair values.  Furthermore, although the University believes its valuation methods are 
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to 
determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the 
reporting date. 

The University’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis were recorded using the fair 
value hierarchy as of June 30, 2024 as follows: 

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Investments            

U.S. Treasuries $ -        $ 33,729,238  $ -        $ 33,729,238 
U.S. Agencies  -         3,307,405   -         3,307,405 

Total investments, at fair value $ -        $ 37,036,643  $ -        $ 37,036,643 

The University’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis were recorded using the fair 
value hierarchy as of June 30, 2023 as follows: 

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Investments            

U.S. Treasuries $ -        $ 33,194,938  $ -        $ 33,194,938 
U.S. Agencies  -         2,540,403   -         2,540,403 

Total investments, at fair value $ -        $ 35,735,341  $ -        $ 35,735,341 

The University does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis on the statement 
of net position. 

6 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable consist of the following as of June 30, 2024 and 2023: 

 2024  2023 

Students $ 1,644,317  $ 1,371,794 
Other  3,352,165   1,648,122 

  4,996,482   3,019,916 
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts  509,872   496,687 

 $ 4,486,610  $ 2,523,229 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

30 

7 - CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE - COMPONENT UNIT 

Contributions receivable are unconditional promises to give that are recognized as contributions when the promise 
is received.  Contributions receivable that are expected to be collected in less than one year are reported at net 
realizable value.  Contributions receivable that are expected to be collected in more than one year are recorded at 
fair value at the date of promise.  That fair value is computed using a present value technique applied to anticipated 
cash flows.  Amortization of the resulting discount is recognized as additional contribution revenue. 

Payments of contributions receivable as of June 30, 2024 are expected to be received as follows: 

2025 $ 1,333,553 
2026  293,143 
2027  163,196 
2028  816,000 
2029  802,000 
Thereafter  2,401,000 

  5,808,892 
Less: Discount on contributions receivable  860,343 

 $ 4,948,549 

8 - LOANS RECEIVABLE 

The University participates in the Federal Perkins Loan Program.  This program is funded through a combination of 
Federal and institutional resources.  The portion of this program that has been funded with Federal funds is 
ultimately refundable to the U.S. government upon the termination of the University’s participation in the program. 
The loans receivable balance of $270,825 and $285,129 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, represents 
student loans issued through the Perkins Loans program and consists of the following as of June 30, 2024 and 2023: 

 2024  2023 

Enrolled students $ 4,325  $ 6,560 
Repayment on schedule  4,383   7,542 
In default  262,117   271,027 

 $ 270,825  $ 285,129 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

31 

9 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows: 

 
Beginning 
Balance  Increases  Decreases  

Ending 
Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated            
Land $ 188,650  $ -        $ -        $ 188,650 
Construction in process  7,074,942   1,420,900   -         8,495,842 

Capital assets, being depreciated            
Land improvements  9,965,277   -         -         9,965,277 
Buildings, including improvements  155,173,706   -         -         155,173,706 
Furnishings and equipment  14,570,926   380,521   -         14,951,447 
Leased buildings  109,250,877   -         3,602,386   105,648,491 
Leased furnishings and equipment  3,256,459   608,934   -         3,865,393 
Subscription-based IT arrangements  3,848,732   1,643,487   769,701   4,722,518 

Total capital assets  303,329,569   4,053,842   4,372,087   303,011,324 
Less accumulated depreciation for            

Land improvements  6,494,388   516,706   -         7,011,094 
Buildings, including improvements  77,945,982   4,201,788   -         82,147,770 
Furnishings and equipment  13,923,912   217,047   -         14,140,959 

Less accumulated amortization for            
Leased assets  20,221,217   7,109,840   -         27,331,057 
Subscription-based IT arrangements  1,495,741   1,077,156   769,701   1,803,196 

Total accumulated depreciation and 
amortization  120,081,240   13,122,537   769,701   132,434,076 

Capital assets, net $ 183,248,329  $ (9,068,695)  $ 3,602,386  $ 170,577,248 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

32 

9 - CAPITAL ASSETS  (Continued) 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

 
Beginning 
Balance  Increases  Decreases  

Ending 
Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated            
Land $ 188,650  $ -        $ -        $ 188,650 
Construction in process  5,006,978   2,067,964      7,074,942 

Capital assets, being depreciated            
Land improvements  9,965,277   -         -         9,965,277 
Buildings, including improvements  155,173,706   -         -         155,173,706 
Furnishings and equipment  14,089,733   481,193   -         14,570,926 
Leased buildings  109,250,877   -         -         109,250,877 
Leased furnishings and equipment  2,082,326   1,174,133   -         3,256,459 
Subscription-based IT arrangements  944,206   2,904,526   -         3,848,732 

Total capital assets  296,701,753   6,627,816   -         303,329,569 
Less accumulated depreciation for            

Land improvements  5,940,681   553,707   -         6,494,388 
Buildings, including improvements  73,775,163   4,170,819   -         77,945,982 
Furnishings and equipment  13,523,801   400,111   -         13,923,912 

Less accumulated amortization for            
Leased assets  13,591,890   6,629,327   -         20,221,217 
Subscription-based IT arrangements  428,477   1,067,264   -         1,495,741 

Total accumulated depreciation and 
amortization  107,260,012   12,821,228   -         120,081,240 

Capital assets, net $ 189,441,741  $ (6,193,412)  $ -        $ 183,248,329 

10 - MASSACHUSETTS STATE COLLEGE BUILDING AUTHORITY 

The land on which the dormitory residence halls are located is leased by the Massachusetts State College Building 
Authority (MSCBA) from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  The Commonwealth of Massachusetts also 
executed a lease with MSCBA for land on which a parking garage is located.  MSCBA owns the residence halls and 
parking garage and has entered into long-term lease agreements with the University to occupy and operate the 
facilities. 

The University, under the terms of a management and service agreement between MSCBA and the Commonwealth, 
is charged a semi-annual revenue assessment which is based on the certified occupancy report, the current rent 
schedule, and the design capacity for each of the residence halls.  This revenue assessment is used by MSCBA to 
pay principal and interest due on its long-term debt obligations.  These obligations are guaranteed by the 
Commonwealth.  The assessments charged for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, in the amounts of 
$1,865,188 and $1,516,159, respectively, and have been recorded as auxiliary enterprise expenditures. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

33 

11 - DEFERRED SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS 

Deferred service concession arrangements as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 in the amounts of $2,781,594 and 
$3,193,369, respectively, consist of the unamortized balances of multiple food service agreements with an outside 
party.  This outside party contributed multiple payments since 2004 totaling $8,788,017, to upgrade the food service 
facilities.  The contributions are being amortized over various periods ranging from 12 to 18 years.  Amortization of 
these contributions was $411,775 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. 

12 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liabilities of the University as of June 30, 2024 were as follows: 

 
Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Reductions  

Ending 
Balance  

Current 
Portion  

Bonds payable $ 20,136,679  $ -        $ 1,046,599  $ 19,090,080  $ 1,037,496 

Lease obligations  105,345,541   608,934   6,801,470   99,153,005   4,382,533 

Subscription-based IT 
arrangements  2,373,729   1,643,487   1,083,904   2,933,312   1,063,775 

Accrued workers’ compensation  1,496,531   182,696   -         1,679,227   204,543 

Accrued compensated absences  5,857,528   603,906   -         6,461,434   3,772,159 

Accrued pension and OPEB 
obligations  30,311,227   -         8,011,034   22,300,193   -       

Refundable grant   306,684   -         39   306,645   -       

 $165,827,919  $ 3,039,023  $ 16,943,046  $151,923,896  $ 10,460,506 

Long-term liabilities of the University as of June 30, 2023 were as follows: 

 
Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Reductions  

Ending 
Balance  

Current 
Portion  

Bonds payable $ 20,477,301  $ -        $ 340,622  $ 20,136,679  $ 665,000 

Lease obligations  107,566,938   1,174,133   3,395,530   105,345,541   3,533,165 

Subscription-based IT 
arrangements  520,829   2,904,526   1,051,626   2,373,729   670,150 

Accrued workers’ compensation  1,556,138   -         59,607   1,496,531   171,574 

Accrued compensated absences  5,725,532   131,996   -         5,857,528   3,351,550 

Accrued pension and OPEB 
obligations  31,194,951   -         883,724   30,311,227   -       

Refundable grant   346,051   -         39,367   306,684   -       

 $167,387,740  $ 4,210,655  $ 5,770,476  $165,827,919  $ 8,391,439 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

34 

13 - BONDS PAYABLE 

(A) On December 4, 2002, the University signed a financing agreement used for the renovation of the Sullivan and 
Administration Buildings, which was completed in 2009.  A call provision became available on this bond issue 
and the issue was refunded on December 18, 2012, with $10,585,000 of Massachusetts Development Financing 
Agency (MDFA) Revenue Bonds.  The obligation is being repaid solely by the University through revenues.  
Interest on the MDFA bonds is due in semi-annual installments at varying rates ranging from 2.00% to 4.00%.  
Annual principal installments ranging from $255,000 to $875,000 are due through November 2032.  The 
refunding of the MHEFA bonds resulted in a loss, which is included in deferred outflows of resources and will 
be amortized over the term of the bond.  Amortization of this loss for the year ended June 30, 2024, was 
$5,847.  The remaining loss to be amortized as June 30, 2024 is $52,626. 

(B) On July 1, 2020, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $681,052 from the MSCBA 2020 
Series revenue bond in a partial refunding of the 2012 Series revenue bond.  Interest on the bonds is due in 
semi-annual installments at varying rates ranging from 1.044% to 3.072%.  Annual principal installments 
ranging from $69,460 to $117,000 are due May 2032 through May 2039.  The refunding of the MSCBA 2012 
Series bonds resulted in a loss, which is included in deferred outflows of resources and will be amortized over 
the term of the bond.  Amortization of this loss for the year ended June 30, 2024, was $19,520.  The remaining 
loss to be amortized as June 30, 2024 is $273,279. 

(C) On February 15, 2022, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $9,509,327 from the MSCBA 
2022 Series revenue bond in a partial refunding of the 2012 Series revenue bond.  Interest on the bonds is due 
in semi-annual installments at varying rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%.  Annual principal installments 
ranging from $342,496 to $742,778 are due May 2025 through May 2042.  The refunding of the MSCBA 2012 
Series bonds resulted in a gain, which is included in deferred inflows of resources and will be amortized over 
the term of the bond.  Amortization of this gain for the year ended June 30, 2024, was $58,503.  The remaining 
gain to be amortized as June 30, 2024 is $384,813. 

The composition of the University’s Bonds payable for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as follows: 

 2024  2023 

(A) Bond payable, MDFA 2012 Series $ 7,205,605  $ 7,886,229 
(B) Bond payable, MSCBA 2020 Series  681,052   681,052 
(C) Bond payable, MSCBA 2022 Series  11,203,423   11,569,398 

  19,090,080   20,136,679 
Less: Current maturities  1,037,496   665,000 

 $ 18,052,584  $ 19,471,679 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

35 

13 - BONDS PAYABLE  (Continued) 

Debt service requirements as of June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Year Ended June 30 Principal  Interest 

2025 $ 1,037,496  $ 648,543 
2026   1,080,221  606,081 
2027  1,117,432  566,458 
2028  1,161,604  526,892 
2029  1,196,284  484,843 
2030 - 2034  6,086,896  1,725,850 
2035 - 2039  3,430,554  844,946 
2040 - 2042  2,144,892  173,877 

  17,255,379   5,577,490 
Unamortized premium  1,834,701   -       

 $ 19,090,080  $ 5,577,490 

14 - LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

The University leases its residence halls and parking garage from MSCBA, as well as other furnishings and 
equipment under various lease agreements. 

Future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Year Ended June 30 Principal  Interest 

2025 $ 4,382,533  $ 4,065,069 
2026   4,378,064  3,880,915 
2027  4,356,148  3,717,515 
2028  4,282,472  3,741,109 
2029  4,692,586  3,020,798 
2030 - 2034  27,176,534  12,249,527 
2035 - 2039  32,891,720  6,908,399 
2040 - 2043  16,992,948  1,613,614 

 $ 99,153,005  $ 39,196,946 

15 - SUBSCRIPTION-BASED IT ARRANGEMENTS 

The University licenses various software under various subscription-based IT agreements. 

Future minimum payments on these arrangements as of June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Year Ended June 30 Principal  Interest 

2025 $ 1,063,775  $ 56,998 
2026   891,227  37,391 
2027  742,779  19,565 
2028  235,531  4,835 

 $ 2,933,312  $ 118,789 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

36 

16 - NET POSITION 

Unrestricted net position from operations is not subject to externally imposed stipulations; however, it may be 
subject to internal restrictions.  For example, unrestricted net position from operations may be designated for 
specific purposes by action of management or the Board of Trustees or may otherwise be limited by contractual 
agreements with outside parties.  As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, unrestricted net position from operations of 
$32,145,916 and $30,589,057, respectively, has been internally designated by the University for future capital 
investments.  The remaining undesignated unrestricted net position from operations was $37,201,771 and 
$31,547,517 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The University is the recipient of funds that are subject to various external constraints upon their use, either as to 
purpose or time.  These funds are comprised of the following as of June 30: 

 2024  2023 
Restricted - expendable      
 Capital projects $ (88,910)  $ (95,564) 
 Scholarships and other grants   1,662,590   1,481,912 

 $ 1,573,680  $ 1,386,348 

The component unit’s restricted - expendable net position consists of funds whose income is mainly used for 
scholarships and grants.  The component unit’s restricted - nonexpendable net position consists of investments to be 
held in perpetuity and the income is restricted for the purpose of providing scholarships and other activities that 
benefit the University. 

17 - FACULTY COMPENSATION 

Contracts for full-time faculty begin on September 1, and end May 31 of any given academic year.  The 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts and the University pay all faculty members over the twelve-month period of 
September 1 through August 31.  Consequently, on June 30 of each year there is a balance due on each faculty 
contract which is to be paid from the subsequent year’s appropriation.  The balance due as of June 30, 2024 and 
2023 of $2,402,748 and $2,228,855 respectively, has been included in accrued payroll and fringe benefits in the 
statement of net position. 

18 - ACCRUED WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

Independent actuarial reviews of the outstanding loss reserve requirements for the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts’ self-insured Workers’ Compensation program were conducted as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.  Based 
upon the Commonwealth’s analyses, accrued workers’ compensation in the amount of $1,679,227 and $1,496,531 
as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, have been recorded in the unrestricted current fund.  Workers’ 
compensation expense charged to operations was $514,280 and $204,540 in 2024 and 2023, respectively.  The 
actual workers’ compensation paid by the University was $331,584 and $264,147 in 2024 and 2023, respectively. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

37 

19 - ACCRUED COMPENSTATED ABSENCES 

Included in accrued compensated absences are $3,218,466 for accrued vacation time and $3,242,968 for accrued 
sick time as of June 30, 2024 and $3,012,084 for accrued vacation time and $2,845,444 for accrued sick time as of 
June 30, 2023.  Of these balances, $508,587 and $540,881 for June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, represent 
obligations due to employees funded through sources other than State appropriations, and $5,952,847 and 
$5,316,647 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, represent obligations to employees funded through State 
appropriations.  The University anticipates that the obligations due to employees funded by State appropriations will 
be discharged through future State appropriations. 

20 - FRINGE BENEFIT CHARGES 

Certain fringe benefit costs associated with University staff, compensated through State appropriations, are paid out 
of non-University State budget line items.  The University is required to reimburse the State for such costs for 
employees funded from other than State appropriations, based on a percentage of payroll.  For 2024, the University 
reimbursed the State a total of $4,342,525 ($2,506,071 for pensions and $1,836,454 for health care premiums).  For 
2023, the University reimbursed the State a total of $3,166,267 ($1,439,702 for pensions and $1,726,565 for health 
care premiums). 

21 - RETIREMENT PLAN 

The University reports a liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and expense as a result of its statutory 
requirement to contribute to the Massachusetts State Employee’s Retirement System (MSERS).  The following 
information is about MSERS: 

Plan Description  

The Massachusetts State Employees’ Retirement System (MSERS) is a public employee retirement system (PERS), 
covering substantially all of the University’s non-student full-time employees.  It is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Massachusetts State Retirement Board.  Under the cost-
sharing plan, pension obligations for employees of all employers are pooled and plan assets are available to pay the 
benefits through the plan, regardless of the status of the employers’ payment of its pension obligations to the plan. 

Benefit Provisions  

MSERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries.  
Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) establishes uniform benefit and contribution requirements for all contributory 
PERS.  These requirements provide for superannuation retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a 
member’s highest three-year average annual rate of regular compensation.  For employees hired after April 1, 2012, 
retirement allowances are calculated on the basis of the last five years or any five consecutive years, whichever is 
greater in terms of compensation.  Benefit payments are based upon a member’s age, length of creditable service, 
group creditable service and group classification.  The authority for establishing and amending these provisions 
rests with the Massachusetts Legislature, Chapter 32A of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. 

Members become vested after ten years of creditable service.  A superannuation retirement allowance may be 
received upon the completion of twenty years of credible service or upon reaching the age of 55 with ten years of 
service.  Normal retirement for most employees occurs at age 65; for certain hazardous duty and public safety 
positions, normal retirement is at age 55.  Most employees who joined the system after April 1, 2012 are not eligible 
for retirement prior to age 60. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

38 

21 - RETIREMENT PLAN  (Continued) 

Contributions  

The MSERS’s funding policies have been established by Chapter 32 of the MGL.  The Legislature has the authority 
to amend these policies.  The annuity portion of the MSERS retirement allowance is funded by employees, who 
contribute a percentage of their regular compensation.  Costs of administering the plan are funded out of plan assets. 

Member contributions for MSERS vary depending on the most recent date of membership: 

Hire Date  Percentage of Compensation 

Prior to 1975  5% of regular compensation 
1975 to 1983  7% of regular compensation 
1984 to June 30, 1996  8% of regular compensation 
July 1, 1996 to present  9% of regular compensation 

July 1, 2001 to present  
11% of regular compensation (for teacher hired after July 1, 2001 and those 
accepting provisions of Chapter 114 of the Acts of 2000) 

1979 to present  
An additional 2% of regular compensation in excess of $30,000 except for 
teachers subject to Chapter 114 of the Acts of 2000 

In addition, members of Group 1 who join the system after April 2, 2021 will have their withholding rate reduced to 
6% after achieving 30 years of creditable service. 

The University is not required to contribute from its appropriation allocation or other University funds to MSERS 
for employees compensated from State appropriations.  For University employees covered by MSERS but 
compensated from a trust fund or other source, the University is required to contribute an amount determined as a 
percentage of compensation in accordance with a fringe benefit rate determined by the State.  The rate was 16.69% 
and 16.70% of annual covered payroll for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, respectively.  The 
University contributed $1,090,146 and $1,087,817 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, equal 
to 100% of the required contributions for the year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the University reported a net pension liability of $10,806,543 and $13,421,011, 
respectively, for its proportionate share of the net pension liability related to its participation in MSERS.  The net 
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, the measurement date, as determined by an actuarial valuation.  
The University’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on its share of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts’ collective pension amounts allocated on the basis of actual fringe benefit charges assessed the 
University for the fiscal years 2023 and 2022.  The Commonwealth’s proportionate share was based on actual 
employer contributions to the MSERS for fiscal years 2023 and 2022 relative to total contributions of all 
participating employers for each respective fiscal year.  As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the University’s proportion 
was 0.08% and 0.11%, respectively.  For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the University recognized 
pension benefit of $1,029,413 and $279,641, respectively. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

39 

21 - RETIREMENT PLAN  (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the University reported in the statement of net position deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 2024  2023 
Deferred outflows of resources:      
 Change in plan actuarial assumptions $ 181,622  $ 369,502 
 Differences between expected and actual experience  383,880   333,854 
 Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments  290,836   -       
 Changes in proportion from Commonwealth due to internal allocation  82,531   248,799 
 Contributions subsequent to the measurement date  1,090,146   1,087,817 

 $ 2,029,015  $ 2,039,972 

Deferred inflows of resources:      
 Differences between expected and actual experience $ 267,029  $ 523,826 
 Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments  -         71,549 
 Changes in proportion from Commonwealth due to internal allocation  5,142,155   4,329,860 

 $ 5,409,184  $ 4,925,235 

Contributions of $1,090,146 and $1,087,817, respectively, are reported as deferred outflows of resources related to 
pensions resulting from the University contributions in fiscal years 2024 and 2023 subsequent to the measurement 
date, which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 
2024.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as an addition to (reduction in) pension expense as follows: 

2025 $ (1,706,110) 
2026  (2,279,155) 
2027  (1,337) 
2028  (483,713) 

 $ (4,470,315) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability at the measurement dates was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 2023  2022 

Cost of living increases (on the first $13,000 per year for 2023 and 2022) 3.00%  3.00% 
Salary increases 4.00 to 9.00%  4.00 to 9.00% 
Investment rate of return 7.00%  7.00% 
Interest rate credit to the annuity savings fund 3.50%  3.50% 
Inflation rate 2.50%  2.50% 

Pre-retirement mortality rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Employees Table, projected generationally with Scale 
MP-2021 and set forward one year for females.  Post-retirement mortality rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar 
Healthy Annuitant Table projected generationally with Scale MP-2021 and set forward one year for females.  
Mortality rates for disability reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table projected generationally with 
Scale MP-2021 and set forward one year. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

40 

21 - RETIREMENT PLAN  (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions  (continued) 

Experience studies were performed as of February 27, 2014, encompassing the period January 1, 2006 to December 
31, 2011, updated to reflect actual experience from 2012 through 2020 for post-retirement mortality. 

Investment assets of MSERS are with the Pension Reserves Investment Trust (PRIT) Fund.  The long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate 
ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage.  Best estimates of geometric rates of return for each major asset class included in the PRIT 
Fund’s target assets allocation as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 are summarized in the following table: 

   Target Allocation  
Long-Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return 
Asset Class   2023  2022  2023  2022 

Global equity     37%   38%   4.90%   4.20% 
Core fixed income     15%   15%   1.90% .  0.50% 
Private equity     16%   15%   7.40%   7.00% 
Real estate     10%   10%   3.00%   3.30% 
Value added fixed income     8%   8%   5.10%   3.70% 
Portfolio completion strategies     10%   10%   3.80%   2.70% 
Timber/natural resources     4%   4%   4.30%   3.90% 

Total     100%   100%       

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% for 2023 and 2022.  The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rates and the Commonwealth’s contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between 
actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rates.  Based on those assumptions, the net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The following illustrates the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate as of June 30, 
2023 and 2022.  In particular, the table presents the MSERS collective net pension liability assuming it was 
calculated using a single discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the 
current discount rate: 

 2023  2022 

1% decrease to 6.00% for 2023 and 2022 $ 14,852,136  $ 18,510,630 
Current discount rate 7.00% for 2023 and 2022  10,806,543   13,421,011 
1% increase to 8.00% for 2023 and 2022  7,382,908   9,114,454 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

41 

22 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS 

The University reports a liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and expense as a result of its statutory 
requirement to contribute to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions 
(OPEB) Plan.  The following information is about the OPEB Plan: 

Plan Description 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB) Plan covers 
substantially all of the University’s non-student full-time employees.  It’s a single-employer defined benefit pension 
plan administered by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  Under the cost-sharing plan, certain benefits for retired 
employees of all employers are pooled and plan assets are available to pay the benefits through the plan, regardless 
of the status of the employers’ payment of its obligations to the plan.  The plan provides health care and life 
insurance to plan members and beneficiaries. 

Benefit Provisions 

Chapter 32A of the General Laws of the Commonwealth (MGL), requires the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to 
provide certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees.  Substantially all of the 
Commonwealth’s employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement age while working for 
the Commonwealth.  Eligible retirees are required to contribute a specified percentage of the health care/benefit 
costs, which are compatible to contributions required from employees. 

Contributions 

Employer and employee contribution rates are set in MGL.  The Commonwealth recognizes its share of the costs on 
an actuarial basis.  As of June 30, 2023 and 2022 and as of the valuation date (January 1, 2023), Commonwealth 
participants contributed 10% to 20% of premium costs, depending on the date of hire and whether the participant is 
active, retiree, or survivor status. 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the University reported a net OPEB liability of $11,493,650 and $16,890,216, 
respectively, for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability related to its participation in the OPEB Plan.  The 
net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, the measurement date, as determined by an actuarial 
valuation.  The University’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on its share of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts’ collective OPEB amounts allocated on the basis of actual fringe benefit charges assessed the 
University for the fiscal years 2023 and 2022.  The Commonwealth’s proportionate share was based on actual 
employer contributions to the OPEB Plan for fiscal year 2023 relative to total contributions of all participating 
employers for each respective fiscal year.  As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the University’s proportion was 0.09% 
and 0.13%, respectively.  For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the University recognized OPEB benefit of 
$4,746,472 and $2,781,658, respectively. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

42 

22 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS  (Continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources  (continued) 

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the University reported in the statement of net position deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows of resources related to postemployment benefits other than pensions from the following sources: 

 2024  2023 
Deferred outflows of resources:      
 Changes in proportion from Commonwealth due to internal allocation $ 318,320  $ 1,514,605 
 Changes in plan actuarial assumption  504,922   1,244,020 
 Differences between expected and actual experience  467,479   310,927 
 Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments  37,568   25,675 
 Contributions subsequent to the measurement date  511,401   474,061 

 $ 1,839,690  $ 3,569,288 

Deferred inflows of resources:      
 Changes in proportion from Commonwealth due to internal allocation $ 13,643,603  $ 10,638,640 
 Change in plan actuarial assumptions  2,964,626   6,112,927 
 Differences between expected and actual experience  1,291,023   2,796,358 

 $ 17,899,252  $ 19,547,925 

Contributions of $511,041 and $474,061, respectively are reported as deferred outflows of resources related to 
OPEB resulting from the University contributions in fiscal years 2024 and 2023 subsequent to the measurement 
date, which will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.  
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized as a reduction in OPEB expense as follows: 

2025 $ (6,468,061) 
2026  (4,733,678) 
2027  (3,122,579) 
2028  (1,588,862) 
2029  (657,783) 

 $ (16,570,963) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2023 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
January 1, 2023 rolled forward to June 30, 2023.  The total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2022 measurement date 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2022 rolled forward to June 30, 2022.  This valuation used 
the following assumptions: 

1. For 2023, the annual healthcare cost trend rates were developed based on the Getzen trend rate model, version 
2023_1f.  The healthcare cost trend rate changed from 5.00% in 2022 to 5.79% for Medicare benefits and from 
7.60% to 7.50% for non-Medicare benefits, then increasing in 2024 before decreasing in 2025, 2026 and 2027 
to a blended rate of 4.77% in 2032 and additional decrease in 2042, 2052, 2062, 2072, and 2075. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

43 

22 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS  (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions  (continued) 

2. For 2022, the annual healthcare cost trend rates were developed based on the Getzen trend rate model, version 
2022_f4.  The healthcare cost trend rate changed from 4.40% in 2021 to 5.00% for Medicare benefits and 
7.60% for non-Medicare benefits, then increasing in 2023 and 2024 before decreasing in 2025 and 2026 to a 
blended rate of 4.97% in 2031 and additional decrease in 2041, 2051, 2061, 2071, and 2075.  The Getzen trend 
rate model also assumes inflation of 2.5%, real GDP growth of 1.4% and excess medical growth of 1.0%. 

3. For 2023, the mortality rate was in accordance with RP 2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table projected with scale 
MP-2021, with females set forward one year. 

4. For 2022, the mortality rate was in accordance with RP 2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table projected with scale 
MP-2020, with females set forward one year. 

5. Participation rates, for 2023 and 2022: 

a. 100% of employees currently electing health care coverage are assumed to elect coverage at retirement. 

b. 35% of employees currently opting out of active employee health coverage are assumed to elect to 
enroll in retiree coverage. 

c. 85% of current and future vested terminated participants will elect health care benefits at age 55, or if 
later, the participant’s current age. 

d. Retirees who currently elect to waive their coverage are assumed to remain uncovered in the future. 

e. 100% of spouses are assumed to elect to continue coverage after the retiree’s death. 

f. For 2023, current non-Medicare eligible retirees and spouses (if covered) under age 65 who are in a 
POS/PPO plan are assumed to move to a Medicare Supplement plan if they are Medicare eligible at 65.  
For 2022, current non-Medicare eligible retirees and spouses (if covered) under age 65 who are in a 
POS/PPO plan are assumed to move to an Indemnity plan if they are Medicare eligible at 65.  All others 
are assumed to remain in their currently elected product type. 

g. Future retirees are assumed to enroll in the existing plans in the same proportion as the current retiree 
mix, as shown in the table below.  These proportions are established separately for non-Medicare and 
Medicare coverage for each product type and reflect the migration of members to new plans. 

   2023  2022 
   Retirement Age  Retirement Age 

   Under 65  Age 65+  Under 65  Age 65+ 

Indemnity     27%   0%   28%   96% 
POS/PPO     63%   0%   62% .  0% 
HMO     10%   0%   10%   4% 
Medicare Supplement     0%   96%   0%   0% 
Medicare Advantage     0%   4%   0%   0% 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

44 

22 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS  (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions  (continued) 

Investment assets of the Plan are with the Pension Reserves Investment Trust (PRIT) Fund.  The long-term expected 
rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate 
ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage.  Best estimates of geometric rates of return for each major asset class included in the PRIT 
Fund’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 are summarized in the following table: 

   Target Allocation  
Long-Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return 
Asset Class   2023  2022  2023  2022 

Global equity     37%   38%   4.90%   4.20% 
Portfolio completion strategies     10%   10%   3.80% .  2.70% 
Core fixed income     15%   15%   1.90%   0.50% 
Private equity     16%   15%   7.40%   7.30% 
Value added fixed income     8%   8%   5.10%   3.70% 
Real estate     10%   10%   3.00%   3.30% 
Timber/natural resources     4%   4%   4.30%   3.90% 

Total     100%   100%       

Discount Rate  

The discount rates used to measure the OPEB liability as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was 4.34% and 4.30%, 
respectively.  This rate was based on a blend of the Bond Buyer Index rates of 3.65% and 3.54% as of the 
measurement date of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and the expected rates of return.  The plan's fiduciary 
net position was not projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan 
members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments of 7.00% per annum was not 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2023 and 
2022, respectively. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the University calculated the discount rate we as what the net 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one 
percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 

 2023  2022 

1% decrease to 3.34% for 2023 and 3.30% for 2022 $ 13,429,202  $ 19,938,993 
Current discount rate 4.34% for 2023 and 4.30% for 2022  11,493,650   16,890,216 
1% increase to 5.34% for 2023 and 5.30% for 2022  9,905,419   14,752,358 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

45 

22 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS  (Continued) 

Sensitivity Analysis  (continued) 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the University, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if 
it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-percentage-point 
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

 2022  2021 

1% decrease for Medical and EGWP and Administrative costs $ 9,630,806  $ 14,327,507 
Current cost trend rate as described on page 43  11,493,650   16,890,216 
1% increase for Medical and EGWP and Administrative costs  13,850,033   20,590,215 

23 - STATE CONTROLLED ACCOUNTS 

Certain significant costs and benefits associated with the operations of the University are appropriated, expended, 
controlled and reported by the State through non-University line items in the State’s budget.  Under accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America such transactions must be recorded in the financial 
statements of the University.  These transactions include payments by the State for the employer’s share of funding 
the Massachusetts State Employee’s Retirement System and for the employer’s share of health care premiums.  The 
estimated amounts of funding attributable for the State retirement system contribution and the employer’s share of 
health care premiums for 2024 were $9,619,196 and $7,048,966, respectively.  The estimated amounts of funding 
attributable for the State retirement system contribution and the employer’s share of health care premiums for 2023 
were $6,420,826 and $7,700,191, respectively. 

24 - MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING SYSTEM - (UNAUDITED) 

Section 15C of Chapter 15A of the Massachusetts General Law requires Commonwealth colleges and universities 
report activity of campus-based funds to the Comptroller of the Commonwealth’s Statewide Accounting System, 
Massachusetts Management Accounting and Reporting System (MMARS) using the statutory basis of accounting.  
The statutory basis of accounting is a modified accrual basis of accounting and differs from the information 
included in these financial statements.  The amounts reported on MMARS meet the guidelines of the Comptroller’s 
Guide for Higher Education Audited Financial Statements. 

The University’s State appropriations are composed of the following for the years ended June 30: 

 2024  2023 

Direct unrestricted appropriations $ 38,924,137  $ 34,859,139 
Fringe benefits for benefitted employees on state payroll  16,668,157   14,121,017 
Tuition remitted  (379,533)   (364,107) 

Total appropriations $ 55,212,761  $ 48,616,049 

A reconciliation between the University and MMARS fund 901 activity as of June 30, 2024 is as follows: 

Revenue per MMARS $ 86,458,736 
Revenue per University  86,461,711 

Net reporting classification and differences $ (2,975) 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

(Continued) 
 

46 

25 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The University provided, at no cost, office space and certain personnel services to the Worcester State Foundation, 
Inc. (the “Foundation”).  The value of this support is estimated to be $210,262 and $236,447 for the years ended 
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Worcester State Foundation, Inc. acts as an agent for the University by periodically accepting grants on its behalf.  
The proceeds of the grants are recorded as an asset of the Foundation until remitted to the University. 

The University and the Foundation have entered into an affiliation agreement with the Worcester Center for Crafts, 
Inc. to collaboratively offer venues for teaching and learning in the arts, exhibition space, safe, well-equipped 
studios for community-based programs as well as undergraduate visual and performing art classes.  As part of the 
agreement, the University provides various forms of support to the Crafts Center including annual service fees for 
allowing the University to use the facilities.  Service agreement fees were $250,000 for the years ended June 30, 
2024 and 2023.  In addition, the University provided support including personnel, equipment, repairs and 
maintenance and other operating expenses in 2023.  The value of this support is estimated to be $321,847 for the 
year ended June 30, 2023. 

The University provides certain operating costs for WSF Real Estate, Inc. in exchange for the use property adjacent 
to the University campus for various purposes.  WSF Real Estate, Inc. is under the control and holds property on 
behalf of the Foundation.  Operating costs provided by the University were $85,497 and $83,156 during the years 
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

26 - AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES 

The University’s auxiliary enterprises consist of residence life and housing and health services.  The related 
revenues and expenses for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

 2024  2023 

 
Residence Life 
and Housing  

Health 
Services  

Residence Life 
and Housing  

Health 
Services 

Total revenue $ 11,792,367  $ 993,455  $ 11,838,847  $ 998,756 
Total expenses  14,983,314   491,956   14,811,008   549,027 
Increase (decrease) in net position before 

transfers $ (3,190,947)  $ 501,499  $ (2,972,161)  $ 449,729 

27 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation 

Pending or threatened lawsuits against governmental agencies arise in the ordinary course of operations.  In the 
opinion of the University’s administration, the ultimate resolution of any pending legal actions involving the 
University will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the University. 

Grants and entitlements 

The University receives financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants and entitlements.  
Expenditures of funds under these programs require compliance with the grant agreements and are subject to audit 
by the granting agency.  Any disallowed expenditures resulting from such audits become a liability of the 
University.  In the opinion of the University’s administration, the outcome of any findings with respect to 
disallowed expenditures will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the University. 



 
 

 

REQUIRED   
SUPPLEMENTARY  INFORMATION



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

 
47 

Schedule 1 
WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 

(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 
 

SCHEDULE  OF  THE  UNIVERSITY'S  PROPORTIONATE  SHARE  OF  THE  NET  PENSION  LIABILITY 
Massachusetts  State  Employees'  Retirement  Plan 

 
YEAR  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024 

(With  Comparative  Totals  for  2015  through  2023) 
 
 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

University's proportion of the net pension liability 0.81% 0.11% 0.15% 0.15% 0.14%

University's proportion of the net pension liability 10,806,543$   13,421,011$   11,319,876$   23,033,837$  19,332,813$  

University's covered-employee payroll 6,936,263$     8,039,088$     9,176,617$     10,458,847$  12,561,991$  

University's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 155.80% 166.95% 123.36% 220.23% 153.90%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
   pension liability 70.71% 71.05% 77.54% 62.48% 66.28%

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

University's proportion of the net pension liability 0.17% 0.15% 0.15% 0.18% 0.14%

University's proportion of the net pension liability 20,564,468$  18,014,320$   18,674,184$  18,901,770$  9,357,928$    

University's covered-employee payroll 12,922,066$  11,336,488$   11,331,835$  11,013,323$  10,245,240$  

University's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 159.14% 158.91% 164.79% 171.63% 91.34%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
   pension liability 67.91% 67.21% 63.48% 67.87% 76.32%



 
 

 See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

 

48 

Schedule 2 
WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 

(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 
 

SCHEDULE  OF  UNIVERSITY  PENSION  CONTRIBUTIONS 
Massachusetts  State  Employees'  Retirement  Plan 

 
YEAR  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024 

(With  Comparative  Totals  for  2015  through  2023) 
 
 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Statutorily required contribution* 1,087,817$     1,290,957$     1,290,289$     1,450,748$     1,315,547$     

Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution* 1,087,817       1,290,957       1,290,289       1,450,748       1,315,547       

Annual contribution deficiency (excess) -  $              -  $              -  $              -  $              -  $              

University's covered-employee payroll 6,936,263$     8,039,088$     9,176,617$     10,458,847$   12,561,991$   

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 15.68% 16.06% 14.06% 13.87% 10.47%

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Statutorily required contribution* 1,421,424$     1,098,173$     972,477$        1,039,592$     741,444$        

Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution* 1,421,424       1,098,173       972,477          1,039,592       741,444          

Annual contribution deficiency (excess) -  $              -  $              -  $              -  $              -  $              

University's covered-employee payroll 12,922,066$   11,336,488$   11,331,835$   11,013,323$   10,245,240$   

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 11.00% 9.69% 8.58% 9.44% 7.24%

*Annual contribution are reported one year in arrears
as required by GASB 68

 
  



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

49 

 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  SCHEDULE  OF  THE  UNIVERSITY’S  PROPORTIONATE  SHARE  OF  THE  

NET  PENSION  LIABILITY  AND  SCHEDULE  OF  UNIVERSITY  CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

JUNE  30,  2015 THROUGH  2024 

1 - CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2023 measurement date included a change in mortality rates.  As 
of this date, pre-retirement mortality rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Employees Table, projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2021 and set forward one year for females.  Post-retirement mortality rates reflect the 
RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table projected generationally with Scale MP-2021 and set forward one 
year for females.  Mortality rates for disability reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2021 and set forward one year. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2022 measurement date included a change in the inflation rate 
from 0.00% in 2021 to 2.50% for 2022. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date included a change in mortality rates.  As 
of this date, pre-retirement mortality rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Employees Table, projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2020 and set forward one year for females.  Post-retirement mortality rates reflect the 
RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table projected generationally with Scale MP-2020 and set forward one 
year for females.  Mortality rates for disability reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2020 and set forward one year. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date included a change in the investment rate 
of return from 7.15% in 2020 to 7.00% for 2021. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date included a change in the investment rate 
of return from 7.25% in 2019 to 7.15% for 2020. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date included a change in the investment rate 
of return from 7.35% in 2018 to 7.25% for 2019. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2018 measurement date included a change in mortality rates for 
disability. As of this date, mortality rates for disability reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table 
projected generationally with Scale MP-2016 and set forward one year. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2017 measurement date included a change cost of living increases 
whereby such increases are on only the first $13,000 per year. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2017 measurement date included a change in mortality rates.  As 
of this date, pre-retirement mortality rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Employees Table, projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2016 and set forward one year for females.  Post-retirement mortality rates reflect the 
RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table projected generationally with Scale MP-2016 and set forward one 
year for females.  Mortality rates for disability were assumed to be in accordance with the RP-2000 Healthy 
Annuitant Table projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of 2015 (gender distinct). 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2016 measurement date included a change in the range of 
assumed salary increases from 3.5% to 9.0% in 2015 to 4.0% to 9.0% 
  



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

50 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  SCHEDULE  OF  THE  UNIVERSITY’S  PROPORTIONATE  SHARE  OF  THE  

NET  PENSION  LIABILITY  AND  SCHEDULE  OF  UNIVERSITY  CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

JUNE  30,  2015 THROUGH  2024 
(Continued) 

1. CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS  (Continued) 

Chapter 176 of the Acts of 2011 created a one-time election for eligible members of the Optional Retirement Plan 
(ORP) to transfer to the State Employees' Retirement System (SERB) and purchase service for the period while 
members of the ORP. As a result, the total pension liability of SERB has increased by approximately $400 million 
as of June 30, 2016. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2015 measurement date included a change in the investment rate 
of return and discount rate from 8.0% to 7.5%.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the investment rate 
of return and discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contributions rates 
and the members rates. 

In May 2015, an early retirement incentive (ERI) was created for certain members MSERS who upon election of the 
ERI retired effective June 30, 2015.  As a result, the total pension liability of MSERS has increased by 
approximately $230 million as of the June 30, 2015 measurement date. 

The Actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2015 measurement date included a change in mortality rates.  As 
of this date, pre-retirement mortality rates reflect the RP-2000 Employees table projected generationally with Scale 
BB and a base year of 2009 (gender district).  Post-retirement mortality rates reflect the RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant 
table projected generationally with Scan BB (gender distinct).  Disability rates were assumed to be in accordance 
with the RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant table projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of 2015 (gender 
distinct). 

Mortality rates included as of the June 30, 2014 measurement date included pre-retirement mortality rates reflecting 
the RP-2000 Employees table projected 20 years with Scale AA (gender district).  Post-retirement mortality rates 
reflect the RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant table projected 15 years with Scan AA (gender distinct).  Disability rates 
were assumed to be in accordance with the RP-2000 table projected 5 years with Scale AA (gender distinct) set 
forward 3 years for males. 
  



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
51 

Schedule 3 
WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 

(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 
 

SCHEDULE  OF  THE  UNIVERSITY'S  PROPORTIONATE  SHARE  OF  THE  NET  OPEB  LIABILITY 
Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts  Postemployment  Benefits  Other  Than  Pensions  (OPEB)  Plan 

 
YEAR  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024 

(With  Comparative  Totals  for  2017 through 2023) 
 
 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

University's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.09% 0.13% 0.13% 0.15% 0.21%

University's proportion of the net OPEB liability 11,493,650$   16,890,216$   19,875,075$   29,639,150$   36,445,632$   

University's covered-employee payroll 6,936,263$     8,039,088$     9,176,617$     10,458,847$   12,561,991$   

University's proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability as a percentage of its covered employee
payroll 165.70% 210.10% 216.58% 283.39% 290.13%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability 13.80% 13.00% 10.70% 6.40% 6.96%

2019 2018 2017

University's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.25% 0.21% 0.18%

University's proportion of the net OPEB liability 44,998,975$   35,037,942$   33,225,679$   

University's covered-employee payroll 12,922,066$   11,336,488$   11,331,835$   

University's proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability as a percentage of its covered employee
payroll 348.23% 309.07% 293.21%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability 7.38% 5.39% 4.37%



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 
52 

Schedule 4 
WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 

(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 
 

SCHEDULE  OF  UNIVERSITY  OPEB  CONTRIBUTIONS 
Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts  Postemployment  Benefits  Other  Than  Pensions  (OPEB)  Plan 

 
YEAR  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024 

(With  Comparative  Totals  for  2017 through 2023) 
 
 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Statutorily required contribution* 474,061$        644,941$        677,546$        751,524$        959,290$        

Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution* 474,061          644,941          677,546          751,524          959,290          

Annual contribution deficiency (excess) -  $              -  $              -  $              -  $              -  $              

University's covered-employee payroll 6,936,263$     8,039,088$     9,176,617$     10,458,847$   12,561,991$   

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 6.83% 8.02% 7.38% 7.19% 7.64%

2019 2018 2017

Statutorily required contribution* 1,076,188$     882,031$        745,202$        

Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution* 1,076,188       882,031          745,202          

Annual contribution deficiency (excess) -  $              -  $              -  $              

University's covered-employee payroll 12,922,066$   11,336,488$   11,331,835$   

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 8.33% 7.78% 6.58%

*Annual contributions are reported one year in arrears
as required by GASB 75

 
  



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

53 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  SCHEDULE  OF  THE  UNIVERSITY’S  PROPORTIONATE  SHARE  OF  THE  
NET  OPEB  LIABILITY  AND  SCHEDULE  OF  UNIVERSITY  OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
JUNE  30,  2017 THROUGH  2024 

1 - CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2023 measurement date included a change in the annual 
healthcare cost trend rates used to measure the OPEB liability, developing such rates based on the Getzen trend rate 
model, version 2023_1f.  The healthcare cost trend rate changed from 5.00% in 2022 to 5.79% in 2023 for Medicare 
benefits and from 7.60% in 2022 to 7.50% in 2023 for non-Medicare benefits, then increasing in 2024 before 
decreasing in 2025, 2026 and 2027 to a blended rate of 4.77% in 2032 and additional decrease in 2042, 2052, 2062, 
2072, and 2075. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2023 measurement date included a change in mortality rates.  As 
of this date, mortality rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar Employees Table, projected generationally with Scale 
MP-2021 and set forward one year for females. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2023 measurement date included a change in participant rates 
whereby in 2022 actives under age 65 taking coverage were assumed to have indemnity (28%), POS/PPO (62%) or 
HMO (10%) have been adjusted in 2023 to indemnity (27%), POS/PPO (63%) or HMO (10%). 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2023 measurement date included a change in participant rates 
whereby in 2022 actives over age 65 taking coverage were assumed to have indemnity (96%) or HMO (4%) have 
been adjusted in 2023 to Medicare Supplement (96%) or Medicare Advantage (4%). 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2022 measurement date included a change in the annual 
healthcare cost trend rates used to measure the OPEB liability, developing such rates based on the Getzen trend rate 
model, version 2022_f4.  The healthcare cost trend rate changed from 4.40% in 2021 to 5.00% in 2022 for Medicare 
benefits and from 7.3% in 2021 to 7.60% in 2022 for non-Medicare benefits, then increasing in 2023 and 2024 
before decreasing in 2025 and 2026 to a blended rate of 4.97% in 2031 and additional decrease in 2041, 2051, 2061, 
2071, and 2075.  The Getzen trend rate model also assumes inflation of 2.5%, real GDP growth of 1.4% and excess 
medical growth of 1.1%. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2022 measurement date included a change in participant rates 
whereby in 2021 actives under age 65 taking coverage were assumed to have indemnity (28%), POS/PPO (60%) or 
HMO (12%) have been adjusted in 2022 to indemnity (28%), POS/PPO (62%) or HMO (10%). 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date included a change in the annual 
healthcare cost trend rates used to measure the OPEB liability, developing such rates based on the Getzen trend rate 
model, version 2021_b.  The healthcare cost trend rate changed from 4.9% in 2020 to 4.4% for Medicare benefits 
and from 6.7% in 2020 to 7.3% in 2021 for non-Medicare benefits, then decreasing 0.24% each year to a blended 
rate of 5.18% in 2030 and additional decrease in 2060, 2070, and 2075.  The Getzen trend rate model also assumes 
inflation of 2.5%, real GDP growth of 1.5% and excess medical growth of 1.1%. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date included a change in discount rate used to 
measure the OPEB liability.  The discount rates used to measure the OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 
was 2.77% and 2.28%, respectively. This rate was based on a blend of the Bond Buyer Index rates of 2.16% and 
2.21% as of the measurement date of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively and the expected rates of return. 
  



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

54 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  SCHEDULE  OF  THE  UNIVERSITY’S  PROPORTIONATE  SHARE  OF  THE  
NET  OPEB  LIABILITY  AND  SCHEDULE  OF  UNIVERSITY  OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
JUNE  30,  2017 THROUGH  2024 

(Continued) 

1 - CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS  (Continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date included a change in the long-term 
expected rate of return on plan investments from 7.15% to 7.15%. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date included a change in the annual 
healthcare cost trend rates used to measure the OPEB liability, developing such rates based on the Getzen trend rate 
model, version 2021_b.  The healthcare cost trend rate changed from 7.5% in 2019 to 4.9% for Medicare benefits 
and 6.7% for non-Medicare benefits, then decreasing 0.1% each year to a blended rate of 5.18% in 2030 and 
additional decrease in 2060, 2070, and 2075.  The Getzen trend rate model also assumes inflation of 2.5%, real GDP 
growth of 1.5% and excess medical growth of 1.1%. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date included a change in participant rates 
whereby 35% of employees currently opting out of active employee health coverage are assumed to enroll in retiree 
coverage.  Also, 100% of spouses are assumed to elect to continue coverage after the retiree’s death. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date included a change in participant rates 
whereby in 2019 actives under age 65 taking coverage were assumed to have indemnity (25%), POS/PPO (60%) or 
HMO (15%) have been adjusted in 2020 to indemnity (28%), POS/PPO (60%) or HMO (12%). 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date included a change in participant rates 
whereby in 2019 actives over age 65 taking coverage were assumed to have indemnity (85%), POS/PPO (0%) or 
HMO (15%) have been adjusted in 2020 to indemnity (96%), POS/PPO (0%) or HMO (4%). 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date included a change in the long-term 
expected rate of return on plan investments from 7.35% to 7.15%. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date included a change in the annual 
healthcare cost trend rates used to measure the OPEB liability decreasing from 8.0% in 2018 to 7.5% in 2019, then 
decreasing 0.5% each year to an ultimate rate of 4.5% in 2026 for medical and (2) 4.5% for administration costs.  
Healthcare costs are offset by reimbursements for Employer Group Waiver Plans (EGWP), which are assumed to 
increase 5.0% per year until 2025, then decrease to 4.5% in 2026. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date included a change in participant rates 
whereby 80% of current and future contingent eligible participants will elect health care benefits at age 65, or 
current age if later was increased to 85% in 2019. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date included a change in participant rates 
whereby in 2018 actives under age 65 taking coverage were assumed to have indemnity (40%), POS/PPO (50%) or 
HMO (10%) have been adjusted in 2019 to indemnity (25%), POS/PPO (60%) or HMO (15%). 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date included a change in the long-term 
expected rate of return on plan investments from 7.35% to 7.25%. 

  



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

55 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  SCHEDULE  OF  THE  UNIVERSITY’S  PROPORTIONATE  SHARE  OF  THE  
NET  OPEB  LIABILITY  AND  SCHEDULE  OF  UNIVERSITY  OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
JUNE  30,  2017 THROUGH  2024 

(Continued) 

1 - CHANGES IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS  (Continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date included a change in the discount rates 
used to measure the OPEB liability from 3.92% to 3.63%.  This rate was based on a blend of the Bond Buyer Index 
rates of 3.51% and 3.87% as of the measurement date of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively and the expected 
rates of return. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2018 measurement date included a change in the discount rates 
used to measure the OPEB liability from 3.65% to 3.92%.  This rate was based on a blend of the Bond Buyer Index 
rates of 3.87% and 3.58% as of the measurement date of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively and the expected 
rates of return. 

The actuarial assumptions used as of the June 30, 2018 measurement date included a change in the long-term 
expected rate of return on plan investments from 7.50% to 7.35%. 



 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL  SCHEDULE 
PURSUANT  TO  THE  UNIFORM  GUIDANCE 



 
 

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to schedule. 

56 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
SCHEDULE  OF  EXPENDITURES  OF  FEDERAL  AWARDS 

 
YEAR  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024 

 
 
 

Federal Pass-through Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Assistance Entity Identifying Provided to Federal

Program or Cluster Title Listing Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U. S. Department of Education:

Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007            N/A -  $              228,495$        
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033            N/A -                  177,035          
Federal Perkins Loans 84.038            N/A -                  284,726          
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063            N/A -                  7,724,504       
Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268            N/A -                  16,959,205     
Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education Grants 84.379            N/A -                  26,518            

Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster -                  25,400,483     

Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education 84.116Z N/A -                  228,380          

School Safely National Activities 84.184            N/A -                  144,778          

Total U. S. Department of Education -                  25,773,641     

National Science Foundation:

STEM Education (formerly Education and Human Resources) 47.076            
Direct Award N/A -                  264,322          
Passed through Massachusetts Department of Higher Education ISARGT70661575WOR23A -                  22,123            

-                  286,445          

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:

Passed through U.S. Center for Disease Control/City of Worcester
Racial and Ethnic Approaches to Community Health (REACH) 93.738            33S14422, 33S14423, 33S145423 -                  138,352          

Passed through University of Massachusetts/Network of National Library of Medicine
Promoting Student Learning Spaces and Health Information UG4LM012347-07 -                  9,393              

Total U. S. Department of Health and Human Services -                  147,745          

National Aeronautics and Space Administration:

Science 43.001            N/A -                  131,883          

U.S. Department of State:

Passed through IDEAS
Increase & Diversify Education Abroad for U.S. Students N/A -                  410                 

Passed through The Institute of International Education, Inc.
American Passport Project IIEN-0556 -                  4,125              

Total U. S. Department of State -                  4,535              

U.S. Department of Commerce:

Congressionally Identified Awards and Projects 11.469            N/A -                  169,582          

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards -  $              26,513,831$   
 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  SCHEDULE  OF  EXPENDITURES  OF  FEDERAL  AWARDS 

 
 

57 

1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal award 
activity of Worcester State University (the “University”) under programs of the Federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2024.  The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of 
the operations of the University, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net 
position, or cash flows of the University. 

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants, contracts and similar agreements entered into 
directly between the University and departments of the federal government. 

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of accounting 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures 
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent 
adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.   

Indirect cost rate 

The University has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 

3 - FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS 

The federal student loan programs listed subsequently are administered directly by the University, and balances and 
transactions relating to these programs are included in the University’s basic financial statements.  Loans 
outstanding at the beginning of the year and loans made during the year are included in the federal expenditures 
presented in the Schedule.  The University did not make any new loans during 2023.  The balance of loans 
outstanding at June 30, 2024 consists of: 

   

Outstanding 
Balance as of 
June 30, 2024 

CFDA Number 84.038      
Perkins Loan Program    $ 269,517 

 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
NOTES  TO  SCHEDULE  OF  EXPENDITURES  OF  FEDERAL  AWARDS 

(Continued) 
 

58 

3 - FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS  (Continued) 

Federally-guaranteed loans issued to students of the University during the year ended June 30, 2024 are summarized 
as follows: 

 
Disbursements for 

the year ended 
June 30, 2024 

CFDA Number 84.268   
Federal Direct Student Loans $ 16,959,205 

The University is only responsible for the performance of certain administrative duties with respect to federally-
guaranteed student loan programs and, accordingly, balances and transactions relating to these loan programs are 
not included in the University’s general purpose financial statements.  It is not practical to determine the balance of 
loans outstanding to students and former students of the University as of June 30, 2024. 

4 - ADMINISTRATIVE COST ALLOWANCES 

The Student Financial Aid Administrative Cost Allowances for the year ended June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant $ 14,000 
Federal Work Study  11,000 
Federal Pell Grant  7,665 



 
 

 

OTHER  REPORTS 



  BOLLUS    LYNCH 

Bollus Lynch, LLP 

An Independent Member of the BDO Alliance USA 

89 Shrewsbury Street  •  Worcester, MA  01604 

p - 508.755.7107  •  f - 508.755.3896 

Bolluslynch.com  
 

INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR'S  REPORT  ON  INTERNAL  CONTROL  OVER  FINANCIAL  REPORTING  AND  
ON  COMPLIANCE  AND  OTHER  MATTERS  BASED  ON  AN  AUDIT  OF  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS  

PERFORMED  IN  ACCORDANCE  WITH  GOVERNMENT  AUDITING  STANDARDS 

To the Board of Trustees 
Worcester State University 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial statements of the business-type activities 
and discretely presented component unit of Worcester State University (an agency of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts) (the “University”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated _______________, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the University’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements 
on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 



60 

INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR'S  REPORT  ON  INTERNAL  CONTROL  OVER  FINANCIAL  REPORTING  AND  
ON  COMPLIANCE  AND  OTHER  MATTERS  BASED  ON  AN  AUDIT  OF  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS  

PERFORMED  IN  ACCORDANCE  WITH  GOVERNMENT  AUDITING  STANDARDS 
(Continued) 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Worcester, Massachusetts 
_________________, 2024 



  BOLLUS    LYNCH 

Bollus Lynch, LLP 

An Independent Member of the BDO Alliance USA 

89 Shrewsbury Street  •  Worcester, MA  01604 

p - 508.755.7107  •  f - 508.755.3896 

Bolluslynch.com  
 

INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR’S  REPORT  ON  COMPLIANCE  FOR  EACH  MAJOR  FEDERAL  PROGRAM  
AND  ON  INTERNAL  CONTROL  OVER  COMPLIANCE  REQUIRED  BY  THE  UNIFORM  GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Trustees 
Worcester State University 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Worcester State University’s (an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) (the “University”) 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement  that could have a direct and material effect on each of University’s major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2024.  The University’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform 
Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the University and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.  Our audit does not 
provide a legal determination of the University’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.  

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules 
and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the University’s federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the University’s 
compliance based on our audit.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and 
the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists.  The risk of not detecting material 
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the 
University’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 



 

62 

INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR’S  REPORT  ON  COMPLIANCE  FOR  EACH  MAJOR  FEDERAL  PROGRAM  
AND  ON  INTERNAL  CONTROL  OVER  COMPLIANCE  REQUIRED  BY  THE  UNIFORM  GUIDANCE 

(Continued) 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding 
the University’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 Obtain an understanding of the University’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the University’s internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.  However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Worcester, Massachusetts 
__________________, 2024 
 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
SCHEDULE  OF  FINDINGS  AND  QUESTIONED  COSTS 

 
YEAR  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024 

 
 

63 

I. SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the 
financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified?         Yes   X   No  

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?         Yes   X   None Reported 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted?         Yes   X   No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified?         Yes   X   No  

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?         Yes   X   None Reported 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 
for major federal programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to 
be reported in accordance with section 2 CFR 
200.516(a)?         Yes   X   No  

Identification of major programs: 

Federal Assistance Listing Number(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Student Financial Assistance Cluster:  
84.007  Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 
84.033  Federal Work Study Program 
84.038  Federal Perkins Loans 
84.063  Federal Pell Grant Program  
84.268  Federal Direct Student Loans 

84.379  
Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher 
Education Grants 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B programs $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?   X   Yes         No 
  



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
SCHEDULE  OF  FINDINGS  AND  QUESTIONED  COSTS 

 
YEAR  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024 

(Continued) 
 

64 

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

A. Internal Control Findings 

As disclosed in Section I, the audit of the basic financial statements of Worcester State University as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2024, disclosed no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and 
its operations that are considered to be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 

B. Compliance Findings 

As disclosed in Section I, the audit disclosed no instances of noncompliance which are material to the 
financial statements of Worcester State University as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

III. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS 

A. Internal Control Over Compliance 

No matters were reported as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

B. Compliance Findings 

No matters were reported as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024. 



 
 

WORCESTER  STATE  UNIVERSITY 
(An  Agency  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts) 

 
SUMMARY  SCHEDULE  OF  PRIOR  AUDIT  FINDINGS 

 
YEAR  ENDED  JUNE  30,  2024 

 

65 

The prior year single audit disclosed no findings in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, and no uncorrected 
or unresolved findings exist from the prior audit’s Summary of Prior Audit Findings. 























President’s Update 
 

  
 - 1 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Even as we look back at Worcester State’s 150 
years, we must also look ahead. Like other 
administrators and boards over that time – notably 
during the Depression, when we nearly closed our 
doors – we face some strong headwinds. 

PRESIDENT’S OFFICE 
Worcester State University 
486 Chandler Street 
Worcester, MA 01602 
508-929-8000 
www.worcester.edu 

Midway through, we invested in an external analysis of the higher education market, which informed the 
RASE (Roadmap for Advancing Student Excellence) Plan, developed by a campus-based task force. Among 
other initiatives, it called for a new academic framework, MajorPlus, whereby students graduate with two 
majors or a major and a minor. Of the new students entering in fall of 2024, 70 percent say MajorPlus was a 
factor in their decision to attend Worcester State, and this signature approach has distinguished us from 
other universities. 

Today, we face the roughest waters since I arrived in 2011: a sharp demographic decline in the population of 
18-year-olds combined with a growing percentage of high school students who see little value in higher 
education. Those institutions that hit these waves without new navigation tools are likely to get tossed. We 
do not intend to be one of them. By investing up front in an industry-leading recruitment and enrollment 
suite of services through EAB’s Enroll360, we intend to grow enrollment over this period, consistent with the 
Strategic Enrollment Management (SEM) plan the Board of Trustees supportively endorsed in 2023.  

The plan established a goal of enrolling at least 5,000 undergraduate and 1,500 graduate students by 2027, 
despite the shrinking of our traditional recruitment markets. With current enrollment at 4,734 and 877, 
respectively, new strategies and initiatives are required. The ones outlined in the SEM Plan have led to a 
significant improvement in our persistence rate. Yet we cannot expand the recruitment end of the 
admissions funnel with our existing staff and information technology. Enroll360 will provide us with access to 
EAB’s proprietary database of millions of student names, as well as the technological ability and capacity to 
strategically engage with more prospective students who might be persuaded to consider WSU. Importantly, 
EAB can connect with those high school students as early as sophomore year – far earlier than we are able 
to. Enroll360 has an excellent track record of achieving enrollment growth for its clients, and we aim to be a 
beneficiary.  

 

 

President’s Update 

President’s Message 

January 2025 

I’ve long believed in a planful approach to addressing challenges, and that practice 
has stood us well.  Shortly after I arrived at Worcester State, we undertook a 
comprehensive and inclusive process to develop a five-year strategic plan. With 
Vision 2020, we established a set of core values that guide us to this day. 



President’s Update 
 

  
 - 2 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fundraising is linked to this undertaking.  Our yield among admitted students, for example, 
correlates with the number and types of scholarships we can offer along with acceptance letters. 
Thus we are preparing to launch a multi-year campaign for scholarships as well as for other 
university needs.  

Both the EAB partnership and our fundraising campaign will require us to incur new costs, 
investing in each up front. At the January trustees meeting, the vice presidents of Enrollment 
Management and Advancement will oversee presentations on the new initiatives, and we look 
forward to gathering input from the Board. I am confident both investments will not only help us 
navigate the rough waters before us, but will put Worcester State on the best course for the 
decades ahead. 














































